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Five Year Summary

For the year ended 31 March
2014

£m
2013

£m
2012

£m

2011
(restated)

£m
2010

£m

Income and Expenditure Account

Turnover 131.5 122.3 110.0 104.5 102.8

Cost of sales (8.9) (7.6) (5.6) (4.0) (5.9)

Operating costs (89.0) (80.0) (80.1) (72.3) (70.6)

Operating surplus 33.6 34.7 24.3 28.2 26.3

Net interest charge (23.5) (22.7) (19.6) (19.3) (19.5)

Surplus on sale of assets 1.4 2.1 1.4 1.3 1.6

Tax (charge)/credit on ordinary activities (0.1) 0.3 6.7 (0.3) 0.1

Surplus for the year 11.4 14.4 12.8 9.9 8.5

Balance Sheet

Housing properties at cost less depreciation 1,126.6 1,072.3 1,006.6 941.0 840.9

Less: Social housing and other grants (440.8) (427.0) (408.4) (379.9) (332.9)

685.8 645.3 598.2 561.1 508.0

Other tangible fixed assets 25.8 27.4 28.3 28.9 31.1

Investments 1.9 1.8 2.9 2.8 0.0

Net current assets 60.6 55.6 104.3 22.9 25.5

774.1 730.1 733.7 615.7 564.6

Loans due after one year 633.1 597.4 616.1 511.1 477.8

Other long term liabilities 23.0 24.3 7.9 5.6 8.9

Reserves 118.0 108.4 109.7 99.0 77.9

774.1 730.1 733.7 615.7 564.6

Statistics

Operating margin 26% 28% 22% 27% 26%

Gearing 82% 82% 84% 79% 77%

Interest cover 143% 153% 124% 146% 135%

Total housing properties in management 20,444 19,861 19,457 18,289 17,352

The figures for 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011 reflect the introduction of component accounting as required by the SORP Update 2010. The 
figures for 2010 have not been restated to reflect component accounting. The 2011 figures were restated in the 2012 financial statements.

In 2013/14, the Group made a one off payment of £4m (2012/13: £5m) into the pension scheme to improve funding. This increased the 
operating costs reducing the operating margin achieved.

Performance Highlights
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I was privileged to have the opportunity to chair Radian when Richard Hastilow stepped down in December 2013. 

Richard had a great influence on Radian and on behalf of everyone in our organisation. I want to thank him for his 

hard work and commitment. We will shortly appoint a new Chair to whom I will hand the reins after our Annual 

General Meeting in September. 

I would also like to take the opportunity to thank Richard Barritt, John Collinge and Sean Gibbs for the long service 

they have given to the Group and its predecessor organisations. Their knowledge combined with their ability to 

provide challenge and support in equal measure has been much valued by everyone in Radian. 

We have been successful in attracting and appointing able and experienced successors for the Board members 

who are standing down. Their induction is under way and they will take over their specific Board and committee 

responsibilities in September.

The last year has certainly been challenging, but also very rewarding. Our customers have found economic pressures 

increasingly difficult and we have intensified our efforts to advise and support them. Our welfare advice service 

assisted in securing £3.7m of additional welfare benefits and our energy advisers visited over 1,200 households at 

risk of fuel poverty, helping to save an estimated £0.2m. This focus on supporting household income has no doubt 

helped us achieve record rent collection, with arrears reduced to 1.83% of annual debit. 

In addition, through our Employment Support and Training initiative established in July 2012 we have now 

supported 170 residents into work and 690 residents into training or support. 

Delivering more homes and high quality services is our core purpose, and we have long recognised the merit of 

doing this efficiently. Value for money gains make a vital contribution, and feature in all our plans. Accordingly  

I am delighted to highlight approximately £1.6m of savings this financial year. 

Since 2004 we have helped thousands of people to buy their own home initially as Zone Agent then as HomeBuy 

Agent for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. We are very pleased to have won the new Help to Buy Agency contract 

for the next two years, extending our service across an expanded geography in the central south of England. We 

were also successful in winning two major regeneration sites, Quebec Barracks in Bordon, East Hampshire and 

Portsmouth Gateway. Both are Homes and Communities Agency sites, where design, quality, energy efficiency and 

local employment, as well as land bid, were key factors. They were won in the face of strong competition and will 

yield 180 new homes.

Radian Support’s initiatives engage people we support in the design and delivery of services. We worked with the 

Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead to initiate the development of the social enterprise “Disability is our 

Ability”. This provides employment and training for people we support. The Care Attendants Scheme (“CAS”) was 

rebranded Radian at Home and increased its independently funded client base in Berkshire and Hampshire. During 

the year Radian Support also secured new contracts, boosting turnover by £1.2m. These include £1m of Extra 

Care services in Hampshire and £0.2m in Learning Disability services in Berkshire. A domiciliary care contract with 

Buckinghamshire was also won during the year and started on 31 March 2014. 

Introduction from the Chair of the Group 
Combined Board
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The work that leads to awards and accreditations is undoubtedly more important than the awards themselves.  

In my view our sector is generally not well understood. I believe that the awards have helped to increase our profile, 

and awareness of the work of Radian and the sector. This year we were recognised for our sustainable homes,  

our telecare services and new home design. Our successes include gold champion Investors in People status,  

which reflected our successful journey to increase employee engagement which has now reached 80%. Great staff 

deliver great services, and 84% of customers told us that they were satisfied with Radian in our 2013 customer 

satisfaction survey. 

I am stepping down in September following the recommended maximum of nine years as a board member. It has 

been a pleasure and a privilege to work with Radian and I am confident that everybody in the organisation will 

continue to put the needs and aspirations of residents and people we support at the heart of everything we do.

Margaret Scott 

Chair

Introduction from the Chair of the Group 
Combined Board continued
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Our Structure

Portal Housing 
Association 
Limited (2A)

Windsor and 
District Housing 

Association 
Limited (1A)

Drum Housing 
Association 
Limited (2A)

The Swaythling 
Housing 

Association 
Limited (2A)

Radian Support 
Limited (2B)

Radian Capital 
Plc (3C)

Swaythling 
Assured Homes 

Plc (5)

Affinity Reading 
(Holdings) 

Limited – 50% 
Holding (4D)

Affinity Reading 
Limited (4E)

Radian Group Limited

Status 

1. Industrial and Provident Society registered in England.

2.   Charitable Industrial and Provident Society registered in England.

3.  Public Limited Company registered in England.

4.  Limited Company registered in England.

5.  Dormant Company registered in England.

Activity 

A. Registered provider.

B.   Care and support services.

C.  Funding vehicle.

D.  Holding company.

E.   Operator of PFI contract to refurbish, manage and maintain 

housing stock.
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Lindsay Todd – Chief Executive Radian
Lindsay began his career in housing in 1980 as Housing and Development Officer for a 

housing association in Manchester. Qualifying as a chartered surveyor in 1983, in 1986 he 

became a Regional Development Manager with North British Housing Association (now 

Places for People Group). In 1989 he became Regional Manager for the North of England 

for Quality Street Ltd, a private rented housing company backed by Nationwide Building 

Society. He joined Focus Housing Group, in the Midlands in 1995, serving over a five-year 

period as Regional Director, and Director of Business Development. 

In 2000 he was appointed Chief Executive of Oriel Group, one of Radian’s founding 

partners, and was appointed Chief Executive of Radian when it was formed in  

December 2006.

Andrew Newberry – Director of Finance
Andrew Newberry qualified as a chartered accountant in 1979, whilst working for an 

international practice in England. After two years further experience with them in Africa, 

he returned to England and moved into commerce. This gave him experience at a senior 

level in a range of activities including construction, property development, property 

maintenance manufacturing and leasing.

Andrew joined The Swaythling Housing Society Limited, as Director of Finance in 1996, 

taking responsibility for finance, IT and company secretary matters and became Director  

of Finance of Radian Group at its inception.

Andrea Smith – Director of Development and New Business
Andrea joined The Swaythling Housing Society Limited in July 1998, one of Radian’s 

founding companies and has therefore been with Radian since its inception. Andrea is a 

chartered architect and her early career was spent in private practice. She is passionate 

about property and design and proud of Radian’s track record of developing award 

winning schemes. Andrea is a member of the NHF South East Standing Board.

Ralph Facey – Director of Housing and Customer Services
Ralph joined Radian in January 2005 and has over 25 years’ housing management 

experience gained in a range of different organisations. In Birmingham Ralph coordinated 

preparations for the transfer of the City Castle Vale estate to a Housing Action Trust 

and oversaw the formal transfer. After 3 years spent as Housing Services Manager at 

Southampton City Council, Ralph became Chief Housing Officer at Gosport and led the 

service through a period of successful and significant change.

In January 2005 Ralph took over responsibility for The Swaythling Housing Society 

Limited’s preparations for the July 2005 Audit Commission inspection, which resulted in  

a good service and excellent prospects for improvement judgement. Ralph was appointed 

as Group Director of Housing and Customer Services in December 2009.

Our Executive Team
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Peter Evans – Director of Technical Services
Peter has been working in construction for over 30 years gaining experience in a variety 

of roles across different sectors including self employment, contracting, private sector 

consultancy, charitable organisations and the housing sector.

After leaving the production side of the construction industry in 1997 he gained 

qualification as a surveyor and subsequently joined the National Trust as an historic 

building surveyor working in Oxfordshire. In the same year he gained the distinction  

of winning two Chartered Institute of Builders Awards in both Contractual and  

Technology studies.

As Director of Technical Services at Radian he is responsible for over 260 staff and an 

annual budget of £35m, delivering asset management and maintenance to over 18,000 

homes across the South of England.

In addition Peter is responsible for the procurement, sustainability and facilities 

management of the Group which has an annual turnover of £106m and over 1,200 staff. 

Gina Small – Director of Radian Support
Gina has been working in health and social care for the past 30 years, starting as a  

nurse in her native Glasgow, before moving south in 1986 and working across a range 

of services in both an operational and commissioning role. She has always had a passion 

in developing projects and services which recognise the rights and needs of people with 

disabilities and which seek to make a real, positive difference in their lives.

Isabelle Simon-Evans – Director of Corporate Services
Isabelle joined Radian in February 2010 following a career across the private, public 

and not-for-profit sectors. She was formerly Director of People, procurement and 

organisational development with the The Children’s Society and a board member and 

chair of the remuneration committee for a housing association specialising in services for 

people with learning disabilities and mental health issues. Starting her career in sales and 

marketing, Isabelle developed operational experience in running services for vulnerable 

adults, registering and inspecting residential care. She is a Fellow of the Institute of 

Personnel and Development and has had experience as a magistrate in the youth  

and adult courts.

Our Executive Team
continued
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Activities
Radian Group Limited (the “Group”) is a not for profit organisation administered by a non executive board 

of management. It is a company limited by guarantee and is a Registered Provider. It has five principal 

subsidiaries, of which four are Registered Providers and the other is a provider of care and support services 

mainly for people with learning difficulties. It also has a subsidiary held for the purpose of issuing bonds  

and lending the proceeds to other members of the Group. Radian is subject to regulation by the Homes  

and Communities Agency (the “HCA”).

The Group’s principal activity is to deliver high quality homes and services which support and improve people’s 

lives and the communities in which they live. 

Strategic Review
Details of the Group’s performance for the year are set out in the Strategic Report that follows this Board 

Report.

Board Members and Executive Directors
The present Board members and the executive Directors of the Group are set out on page 2.

The Board members are drawn from a wide background bringing together professional, commercial and local 

experience and include one resident member. The executives are the Chief Executive and the other members 

of the Association’s senior management team.

The following Board members were appointed in the period up to the date of signing this report:

Margaret Scott (1 June 2013) 

Mandy Clarke (1 September 2013) 

Peter Baynham (1 April 2014) 

Simon Porter (1 April 2014) 

Carol Bode (1 July 2014)

The following Board members resigned in the period up to the date of signing this report:

Jane Slatter (31 May 2013) 

Jayne Beeson (31 May 2013) 

Alison Scarce (26 June 2013) 

Mark Ralf (31 August 2013) 

Richard Hastilow (1 December 2013)

The executives hold no interest in the Group’s shares and act as executives within the authority delegated by 

the Board and Group insurance policies indemnify Board members and officers against liability when acting  

for the Group or relevant subsidiaries.

Board Report
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Board Members and Executive Directors continued
The Boards of the companies listed below have overlapping membership and hold their meetings jointly  

as the Radian Group Combined Board (“GCB”).

• Radian Group Limited

• Drum Housing Association Limited

• Portal Housing Association Limited

• The Swaythling Housing Society Limited

• Windsor and District Housing Association Limited.

The Board of Radian Support Limited meets separately, and two of its members are also members of GCB.

The Board of Management met regularly during the year and was supported by:

• Group Audit Committee (“GAC”)

• Remuneration and Resources Committee (“RARC”)

• Housing Assets and Services Committee (“HASC”)

• New Business Committee (“NBC”)

• Group Finance Committee (“GFC”).

In addition, delegated authority was given by the Remuneration and Resource Committee to the Group’s 

Pensions Advisory Panel and by the New Business Committee to the Executive Appraisal Panel.

Membership and Remuneration of the Board and Group Committees

Radian Group Limited Other Group role

Board movements 
01/04/13 – 31/03/14

Annualised 
fees*

Member 
of Group 
Combined 
BoardJoined Left

Richard Barritt
Member of NBC and Chair of Radian  
 Support Board   £6,250 Y

Peter Baynham Member of GFC 01/04/14  £6,250 Y

Mandy Clarke Chair of RARC 01/09/13  £8,000 Y

Sean Gibbs Resident, Member of HASC   £6,250 Y

Simon Porter Member of GAC 01/04/14  £6,250 Y

Oliver Graham Member of GAC, NBC and Chair of GFC   £8,000 Y

Margaret Scott (Chair) Member of HASC, NBC and RARC 01/06/13  £16,200 Y

Lindsay Todd Member of NBC and GFC   n/a Y

Carol Bode No other Group roles 01/07/14 £6,250 Y

Jayne Beeson
Member of GAC and NBC and (from 1 Sept  
 2013) Chair of Drum Board 31/05/13 £8,000 Y

Richard Hastilow Group Chair, member of NBC 01/12/13 £15,375 until 01/12/13

Mark Ralf
Member of Radian Support Board and  
 (from 1 Sept 2013) Chair of Portal Board 31/08/13 £6,250 Y

Alison Scarce Member of HASC 26/06/13 £5,640 until 26/06/13

Jane Slatter Member of RARC 31/05/13 £5,640 until 31/05/13

*Fees are payable to Board members in accordance with Group policy. Members of the Group Combined Board who are not members of 
the Company Board are remunerated by their respective Associations. Any member of the Group Combined Board who also chairs a Group 
Committee receives a supplementary fee paid by the Company.

Board membership at 31 March 2014 is indicated by shading.

Board Report
continued
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Board Report
continued

Corporate Governance Statement
The respective purpose and remit of the sub-committees are outlined below:

Group Audit Committee
The purpose and remit of this committee is to ensure effective controls, by reviewing, advising, or deciding 

upon these matters, as authorised by the Board of Management:

• Internal control framework and internal audit;

• Risk management and insurance;

• External audit and review of financial statements;

• Responsibility for Health and Safety;

• The effectiveness and role of the Committee.

The Group Audit Committee makes regular reports to the Board and met four times during the year.

Remuneration and Resources Committee
The purpose and remit of this committee is to review, advise or decide upon matters, as authorised by the 

Board of Management:

• Board and Committee effectiveness, and board member recruitment succession and terms of appointment;

• Executive recruitment, terms of employment, remuneration, performance and annual objectives;

•  Staff remuneration and benefits policy (including pensions), staff employment contracts, condition  

of service and Human Resource (“HR”) policies, changes to organisational structure;

• Staff engagement;

•  Plans, performance, efficiency, and resourcing of corporate services, and HR, communications, and learning 

and development strategies;

• Issues arising under the non-contractual payments and benefits policy, or employment litigation.

Housing Assets and Services Committee
The role and remit of this committee is to oversee housing, asset management and customer service, and 

value for money strategy in all parts of the Group, by reviewing, advising, or deciding upon these matters,  

as authorised by the Board of Management:

• Monitoring of service delivery performance and VfM outcomes;

• Approving performance measures and targets and recommending Group VfM targets;

• Advising on service delivery resources;

• Reviewing service delivery strategies and approving relevant policies.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

New Business Committee
The purpose and remit of this committee is to:

• Make decisions regarding the submission of bids for new capital or revenue projects or programmes;

•  Make decisions regarding the development or acquisition of capital or revenue projects or programmes, 

including the acquisition of tenanted stock;

• To make decisions regarding home ownership and market rent lettings transactions;

• To make decisions regarding the disposal of existing Radian owned land or property;

•  To make decisions regarding Joint Ventures with third parties and partnership agreements with third parties 

involving contractual obligations;

•  To monitor contract and consultant performance, HCA programme delivery, Key Performance Indicators  

and risk management associated with the approved projects and programmes;

•  To delegate authority for decision making to the Chief Executive Officer via the Executive Appraisal Panel  

in accordance with agreed parameters for financial appraisal and risk management;

• To monitor and ensure the effectiveness and role of the New Business Committee;

•  To keep members of the Group Combined Board appraised of new initiatives and opportunities under 

consideration.

Group Finance Committee
The purpose and remit of this committee is to review, advise, or decide upon these matters, as authorised  

by the Group Combined Board:

• Budgets, plans and financial operations;

• Treasury matters;

• Pensions;

• The effectiveness and role of the committee.

Pensions and Advisory Panel
The purpose of the Pensions Advisory Panel is to:

• Provide a forum and source of expertise to consider pensions issues for the Group and its employees;

•  Monitor and make recommendations to the Remuneration and Resources Committee about the Pension 

Trust or other pensions providers with regards to the Group’s pension scheme;

• Advise the Remuneration and Resources Committee on pensions, as required;

• Decide on matters specifically delegated to it by the Remuneration and Resources Committee.

Executive Appraisal Panel
The purpose of the Executive Appraisal Panel (“EAP”) is to monitor activity under Radian’s Development 

Strategy, appraise and monitor development and other new business projects, and advise New Business 

Committee (“NBC”) or take decisions on those matters where NBC has delegated authority to EAP.

Service Contracts
The Chief Executive and other executives are employed on the same terms as other staff, their notice periods 

ranging from three to six months.

Board Report
continued
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Other Benefits
The executive Directors are entitled to other benefits such as the provisions of a car and health care insurance.

Pensions
The executive Directors are members of the Radian Group Pension Scheme (“RGPS”). They participate in the 

sections of the schemes on the same terms as all other employee members of those sections and the Group 

contributes to the sections of the scheme on behalf of its employees.

Tenant Involvement
The Group actively encourages involvement in decision-making by residents (tenants, leaseholders, shared 

owners) and people we support (users of our care services). The following mechanisms support involvement:

• At least one member of the Group Combined Board is a resident.

•  We have five Area Panels, of which the majority of members are residents and which scrutinise and advise 

on the quality of local services and service planning.

•  A Residents Council scrutinises Group performance and advises on policies and plans affecting customers. 

Its membership includes representatives of the Area Panels and independently appointed residents.

• The Residents Council Chair attends Group Combined Board meetings as an observer.

• The Group Chair has a standing invitation to attend Residents Council meetings.

Governance and Regulation
The Group’s operations are carried out in accordance with the Housing Acts and regulated by the Regulation 

Committee of the Homes and Communities Agency (“HCA”), and in respect of the care and support activities 

of the Group, regulated by the Care Quality Commission. The Group is also regulated as a charitable Industrial 

and Provident Society.

The Group complies with the principal recommendations of the NHF Code: Excellence in Governance (as 

revised in 2010), and the NHF Code of Conduct for members (as revised in 2012).

The Group Audit Committee has agreed a protocol, with the external auditor which sets out policies for 

determining what non-audit work can be undertaken by the external auditor and procedures for periodic 

review and selection of the external auditor. The level of fees paid for this work is set out in note 6 to the 

financial statements.

The Group continues to achieve high levels of financial and non-financial performance. 

Internal Control Statement
The Group Combined Board (“GCB”) acknowledges its ultimate responsibility for establishing and maintaining 

the whole system of internal control that is appropriate to the various business environments in which it 

operates and for reviewing the effectiveness of those controls. This applies to all companies and subsidiaries 

within the Group. These controls are designed to give reasonable assurance in respect of:

• the reliability of financial and operational information used within the Group or for publication;

• the maintenance of proper accounting records; and

• the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposal.

Board Report
continued
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Internal Control Statement continued
The GCB recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance or eliminate all risk. 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk and to provide reasonable assurance that key 

business objectives and expected outcomes are achieved. It also exists to give reasonable assurance about the 

preparation and reliability of financial and operational information and the safeguarding of the Company’s, 

and the Group’s, assets and interests.

In meeting its responsibilities, the GCB has adopted a risk-based approach to internal controls that are 

embedded within the normal management and governance process. This approach, consistent with past 

practice, includes the regular evaluation of the nature and extent of risks to which the Group is exposed.

The process adopted by the GCB in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control, together  

with some of the key elements of the control framework includes:

Identification and Evaluation of Key Risks
Management responsibility has been clearly defined for the identification, evaluation and control of significant 

risks. There is a formal and ongoing process of management review in each area of the Group’s activities.  

The process is coordinated through a regular reporting framework by the Group Audit Committee (“GAC”). 

The Executive Team regularly considers reports on significant risks facing the Group and the Director of 

Corporate Services reports to the Board any significant changes affecting key risks. The Board reviews  

strategic risk at least once every year.

Monitoring and Corrective Action
A process of control self-assessment (within each entity) along with regular management reporting on control 

issues (throughout the Group) provides assurance to successive levels of management and to the Board.  

This includes a formal procedure for ensuring that corrective action is taken in relation to any significant control 

issues, particularly those with a material impact on the financial statements. In addition, the Group continues  

to use an outsourced internal audit function to monitor and highlight any issues across the Group as expanded 

upon below.

Control Environment and Control Procedures
The GCB retains responsibility for a defined range of issues covering strategic, operational, financial and 

compliance issues. The Group’s Standing Orders set out terms of reference for all Boards and Committees.

They also set out the Group’s policies with regard to the quality, integrity and ethics of its employees and 

Board members. A framework of policies and procedures with which employees must comply support these. 

These cover issues such as delegated authority, segregation of duties, accounting, treasury management, 

health and safety, data and asset protection and fraud prevention and detection. Annual employee appraisal 

procedures maintain standards of performance.

The GCB has adopted the NHF Code ‘Excellence in Governance’ of 2010 and the NHF Code of Conduct 

(2012) and considers that the Group is broadly compliant with both Codes. A statement of non-compliance  

is published on the Radian website and refers to:

•  Section D1 of the Code: “To support Board renewal, maximum terms of office must be two to three terms, 

with an overall maximum period of Board service for non-executive Board members of no more than nine 

years”. The ‘nine-year rule’ is in respect of Board membership. Currently, this is not exceeded on any Board 

in the Group. It has however been exceeded in relation to three GCB members who have served for longer 

than nine years on different Boards within the Group. At 31 March 2014 this was the case for one of the 

Board Report
continued
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Internal Control Statement continued
  Board members and for the other two from 26 April 2014. These members are due to leave Radian on  

31 August 2014, 25 September 2014 and 30 September 2014. The Board considered there to be a strong 

business case for each exceeding a total of nine years of service to the Group and information about this 

has been published on the website. Succession plans are being implemented and the Group will have no 

Board members who have served more than nine years from October 2014.

•  Section H2 of the Code: “The Chair of the GAC must not be the Chair of the Board or an Executive 

member of the Board.” Recent legal advice has clarified that this rule applies to chairing of Radian’s 

subsidiary Boards as well as of the parent Board. The Swaythling Housing Society (“Swaythling”) is  

currently in breach of this section H2 as the Chair of GAC is also Chair of Swaythling. Following 

consultation between the Chief Executive, the Directors of Corporate Services and Finance, the Group  

Chair has agreed that the breach should be reported to the HCA, together with confirmation of our 

intention to rectify the position at the GCB meeting on 25 September 2014, following our Annual  

General Meetings, when all of the subsidiary Board and committee chair appointments are made.

•  Radian publishes a register of interests for Board and Committee members, involved residents, Executives, 

the Company Secretary and Deputy Company Secretary. The interests of senior managers were not 

published by 31 March 2014, but the plan is to publish them during the Summer of 2014. Radian has 

taken the view that the administrative burden of publishing the interests of all other staff would be 

disproportionate.

•  Radian publishes details of Board remuneration on its website, but in the past has published only the 

total cost of Board remuneration in the statutory accounts of Group members. From 2013/14 onwards, 

additional detail will be provided in the Board Reports of the statutory accounts.

The GCB expects Board and Committee members, involved residents and staff to abide by the Radian Code  

of Conduct, which is based on a model provided in the NHF Code of conduct.

Information and Financial Reporting Systems
Forecasts and budgets are prepared which allow the Board and Management to monitor the key financial 

objectives and progress towards achieving financial plans set for the year and the medium term. Regular 

management accounts and key performance indicators for service standards and progress against operational 

plans are prepared, providing an up-to-date financial and other information with significant variances 

investigated and reported as appropriate.

New Business
All significant new initiatives, major commitments and investment projects are subject to formal authorisation 

procedures, either through the Executive Appraisal Panel, the New Business Committee, or the GCB, according 

to delegations set out in the Standing Orders.

GAC
The GAC reviews reports from Management, internal auditors and external auditors to provide reasonable 

assurance that the control procedures are in place and are being followed. This includes a regular review of 

the major risks facing the Group. The GAC makes regular reports to the Board.

Board Report
continued
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Internal Control Statement continued

Fraud
A Group-wide fraud prevention policy and response plan are in place, and all incidents are reported to the 

GAC and recorded in a register reviewed annually by that Committee. The policy covers prevention, detection 

and reporting of fraud and the recovery of assets. The Board, via the GAC, has reviewed the fraud register. 

A Group whistle-blowing policy is also in place. Controls to mitigate the risk of money laundering, and 

procedures for identifying potential money laundering incidents are in place.

The internal control framework and the risk management process are subject to periodic review by internal 

auditors who are responsible for providing independent assurance to the Board via the GAC. The internal 

auditors have confirmed that for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014 Radian has adequate and effective 

control and governance processes to manage the achievement of the Group’s objectives. The GAC considers 

control and risk at each of its meetings during the year.

The GCB (as well as the GAC) has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 

controls and has taken account of any changes needed to maintain the effectiveness of the risk management 

and controls process.

The GCB has concluded that the system of internal controls is effective and that where issues have arisen 

these have been appropriately addressed and potential risks mitigated.

Health and Safety
The Group has prepared detailed health and safety policies and procedures which are managed to protect 

our employees, visitors, contractors, residents and members of the public from harm. We also provide staff 

training and education on health and safety matters.

Key performance indicators monitor compliance and performance within the safety management system. 

Compliance is reported to the Group Audit Committee and the Board on a quarterly basis.

Going Concern
In its consideration of going concern, the Board has reviewed the Group’s expected income and expenditure 

performance in terms of profitability and cash flow, together with an appraisal of the effects of its 

development programme.

The Group’s budget and business plan, taking account of the current uncertain economic climate and 

expected trading conditions, show that Radian Group should be able to operate within its current facilities 

and comply with its banking covenants for the foreseeable future.

In determining that Radian Group is a going concern the Board has considered the risks and uncertainties 

posed by current uncertain economic conditions and determined that they do not currently represent a 

significant risk to the Group.

After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources 

to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at least twelve months 

after the date on which the report and the financial statements are signed. On the basis that the Group’s 

projections are based on prudent data and realistic assumptions, the Board believes that it is appropriate  

to prepare the Group’s financial statements on a going concern basis. For this reason, it continues to adopt 

the going concern basis in the financial statements.

Board Report
continued
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Post Balance Sheet Event
The Group issued a bond in May 2014. The Swaythling Housing Society Limited entered into a contingent 

limited guarantee of the indebtedness taken on. This currently has no value. Further details are provided in 

note 29.

Auditor
In the case of each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the date when this report  

is approved:

•  so far as each of the Directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined in the Companies 

Act 2006) of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

•  each of the Directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves 

aware of any relevant audit information (as defined) and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware 

of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the 

Companies Act 2006.

The Board Report was approved by the Board on 24 July 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Margaret Scott

Chair

Board Report
continued
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Our Business Model

Activities
The Group’s principal activity is to deliver high quality homes and services which support and improve people’s 

lives and the communities in which they live. The Company’s principal activity is the provision of central 

support services to Group companies. 

The Group owns, manages and has an investment in 24,496 properties (2013: 24,124) in local authority areas 

in the south central and south west of England. During the year we added 588 properties (2013: 499) in 

aggregate, before sales and loan redemptions. Of the 20,444 housing properties (2013: 19,861) the Group 

owns and manages some 75% (2013: 73%) are general needs rented accommodation, predominantly for 

families or the elderly, and a further 8% (2013: 7%) are shared ownership properties. 2% (2013: 2%) of the 

homes are supported, with the balance being intermediate, market or other rented accommodation.

The Group has housing fixed assets with a depreciated cost of £1,127m (2013: £1,072m). The Group has 

bought homes from local authorities by way of stock transfers. It has developed or acquired, when new, the 

majority of the rest of the homes it owns. The ex-local authority homes have been subject to a programme of 

repair and all of the homes owned have been maintained to a good standard. The Group employs some 1,092 

full time equivalent staff (2013: 1,083), calculated on the basis of a 37 hour week. The registered office and 

the south western activities of the Group occupy a single purpose-built complex in Eastleigh. There are also 

main offices in Petersfield and Windsor and area offices in Aylesbury, Slough, Portsmouth, Southampton and 

Ringwood.

The Group measures its performance primarily by monitoring the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) set by its 

Board, which are scrutinised by HASC and the Residents Council. The KPIs are a combination of financial and 

operational targets for performance in areas that include rent arrears, rent losses from voids and bad debts, 

customer satisfaction and repairs. Our outcomes are subject to regulation by the HCA and our loan covenants 

are agreed with our lenders. Meeting these is an achievement in an environment of ever increasing standards.

The Group will continue to deliver new homes. Under the current structure the majority of new homes are 

likely to be built by the The Swaythling Housing Society Limited, financed by sales of existing homes to Portal 

Housing Association Limited (“Portal”), thereby increasing the stock holdings of the Group. Portal will finance 

purchases of homes through the cash it has and the cash it receives through bond issue.

Strategic Report
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Strategic Report
continued

Our 2012-2015 Corporate Plan

Our Vision 
‘Radian – where people flourish’

Purpose 
We will create great housing, care and support services, listening hard to our customers, to ensure that Radian 

is their positive choice for all that we provide. We will work with local partners to deliver our vision to be a 

place where people flourish. 

By 2015:
•  90% of our customers will say they trust and recommend us

•  We will have increased our care and support services to £25m and added 1,500 homes to our stock

•  We will have delivered 1,000 training places for our customers and people we support

•  75% of our employees will say they are fully engaged in supporting everything we do.

Our vision to be a place ‘Where People Flourish’, along with our values of ‘choice, opportunity and trust’, 

set the context for all our activities. They are people focused because we are a people business; everything 

we achieve is by people, for people. The following diagram shows how the corporate plan for 2012-15 is 

constructed to ensure that our Group mission drives our strategic goals and objectives, feeding operational 

plans and individual objectives.

Choice

Working to be chosen  
on merit for everything  

we do.

Opportunity

Creating it, seizing it,  
and offering it.

Trust

Doing what we say, 
saying what we do.
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Where People Flourish

Choice

Working to be chosen on 
merit for everything we do.

Opportunity

Creating it, seizing it, and 
offering it.

Trust

Doing what we say, saying 
what we do.

1. Great services:

90% of our customers 
say they trust and 
recommend us.

2. Sustained growth:

Care and Support 
Services have increased 
to £25m.

We have added 1,500 
homes to our stock.

3. Great 
communities:

We have delivered 
1,000 training places 
to our customers and 
people we support.

4. Great team:

75% of our employees 
say they are fully 
engaged in supporting 
everything we do.

1.1. Develop and 
deliver a strategy to 
respond to welfare 
reform.

1.2. Maintain 
Customer Service 
Excellence 
accreditation.

1.3. Deliver 90% of 
repairs right first time.

1.4. Deliver services 
that meet or exceed 
top 25% performers’ 
benchmark.

1.5. Work with our 
customers to enable 
them to save energy 
costs.

1.6. Develop digital 
services that are more 
accessible to our 
customers.

1.7. Develop and 
deliver an action  
plan targeting the
improvement of our 
services to respond  
to and manage
anti-social behaviour.

2.1. Progress our 
Older People’s Strategy 
2012-17.

2.2. Offer menus 
of care and support 
services through direct 
payments/personal 
budgets to 25% of the 
people we support.

2.3. Seek new 
opportunities 
to expand our 
development 
of new homes/
home ownership 
initiatives/Homebuy 
agency services and 
intermediate tenure 
options.

2.4. Seek new 
opportunities to 
grow our care and 
support services 
through extending 
existing services and 
developing new ones.

2.5. Develop a new 
Value for Money 
Strategy that includes 
the new duty of social 
value and achieve our 
targets.

3.1. Develop and 
implement a scheme, 
working with partners, 
to deliver 1,000 
training places and 60 
jobs for customers by  
March 2015.

3.2. Design and 
launch a partnership 
scheme which enables 
our customers to 
have a stake in the 
performance of our 
organisation.

3.3. Create an 
innovation fund 
to which staff and 
customers can bid to 
pilot commercially or 
socially viable schemes.

4.1. Design and deliver 
a framework for 
flexible working.

4.2. Ensure all 
employees who wish 
to do so have achieved, 
or will be working 
towards, a minimum 
qualification of NVQ 
level 3 (or accredited 
equivalent) by March 
2015, subject to 
business needs.

4.3. Implement a 
recognition scheme 
that recognises 
excellent performance.

4.4. 75% of our 
employees say they are 
aware of Radian’s long 
term goals.

4.5. 75% of our 
employees say our 
internal services are 
good.

4.6. Seek external 
recognition for Radian 
as a good employer.

4.7. Offer further 
leadership 
development 
opportunities to 
improve capability.

Our 2012-2015 Corporate Plan continued

Our Objectives and Strategy for Achieving the Aims of the 2012-15 Corporate Plan 

Vision

Values

Strategic 
Goals  

Strategic  
Objectives

(reviewed  
on a yearly 

basis) 

Strategic Report
continued
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Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals
Our Corporate Plan sets our strategic goals for a three year period and our annual Operational Plan identifies 

the objectives for each year to ensure these goals are met. These objectives cascade through Directorate and 

team plans into individual objectives for staff measured through appraisals. We implement a comprehensive 

consultation programme each year to ensure the Corporate Plan and Operational Plan are refreshed, relevant, 

achievable and challenging for us. The Executive Team and Combined Board monitor progress against our 

Corporate Plan on a quarterly basis. 

1. Great Services: 90% of Our Customers Say They Trust and Recommend Us 
Develop and deliver a strategy to respond to welfare reform

We mapped areas of impact and contacted 90% of residents affected by under-occupation and/or the benefit 

cap before implementation of the welfare reforms, maximising benefits and income and implementing a 

Direct Debit solution to enable daily payments of Universal Credit. Alongside developing mechanisms to 

identify vulnerable customers at sign up and devising an approach to monthly rent, we made procedural 

changes to respond to the changing environment and developed our reporting to focus on welfare reform 

impacts. As a result of our efforts overall current net tenant arrears were significantly lower at 1.83% than  

our target of 3.63% despite the challenging environment.

Maintain Customer Service Excellence accreditation

As well as a successful annual audit visit which resulted in maintenance of our accreditation, performance 

in Radian Direct was strong throughout the year. 97% of calls were answered and 81% of enquiries were 

resolved within the customer service centre, along with satisfaction with complaint handling and outcome 

both exceeding target at 81% and 78% respectively. Work between departments to strengthen relationships 

and streamline systems and processes was also productive. 

Deliver 90% of repairs right first time

Despite extreme winter weather, particularly the flooding that severely affected many of our residents, we 

managed to complete almost 93% of repairs right first time. This was an improvement on 2012/2013 and 

above target and we also achieved almost 96% satisfaction with our repairs service for the year.

Deliver services that meet or exceed top 25% performers’ benchmark

Following benchmarking against 31 peer organisations we achieved upper quartile performance for the 

majority of our housing targets including tenant satisfaction with neighbourhoods, gas servicing, repairs, 

arrears, customer service and complaints. We made good progress on building effective relationships between 

different teams to continue improving in other areas such as market rented and shared ownership properties. 

Satisfaction with new homes and home ownership was excellent and work continues to improve satisfaction 

with how we handle defects. Where appropriate restructuring was completed and improved or new systems 

and processes were implemented across the organisation to improve operational effectiveness and outcomes 

both internally and externally. 

Work with our customers to enable them to save energy costs

Our dedicated energy advisers worked with over 1,200 households to reduce energy debt, manage energy 

costs better and increase the energy efficiency of their homes, with estimated savings/reductions of over 

£200,000 over the next three years.

Strategic Report
continued
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Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals continued

1. Great Services: 90% of Our Customers Say They Trust and Recommend Us continued

Develop digital services that are more accessible to our customers

We updated our Customer Services Strategy to embrace digital inclusion and have a broadband provision 

project underway in Longwood Park involving 50 residents. We had good uptake from customers on our  

My Radian portal and all departments worked to develop social media, apps and our website to meet 

customer needs. Radian Support made progress on systems and digital payment options and developed a 

strategy to address the current and future needs of People We Support. A range of films from Development  

& New Business for people buying new homes was successful and the people we support also moved to  

using digital media wherever possible.

Develop and deliver an action plan targeting the improvement of our services to respond to and manage  

anti-social behaviour

We were on target with our action plan which involved multiple departments and continuing to improve 

our knowledge and skills enabled us to better manage customer expectations and resolve cases effectively. 

Customer satisfaction with how we handle cases improved by 20% and with the outcome by 25%. 

2. Sustained Growth:
•  Care and Support services have increased to £25m

•  We have added 1,500 homes to our stock.

Progress our Older People’s Strategy 2012-17

We began the review of our Housing for Older People stock and developed an action plan to address issues 

and consider options. The focus for staff was on developing specialist knowledge and expertise to promote 

independence and choice for customers; this will expand to include learning and development opportunities 

supported by specific promotional activities that began in 2013/14. Our dedicated Aids and Adaptations 

service completed over 1,000 jobs and our in-house Occupational Therapists assessed more than 400 

customers. We also successfully promoted our Life-Link scheme and gained 74 new customers. 

Offer menus of care and support services through direct payments/personal budgets to 25% of the  

people we support

Although more people we support received this service than in previous years and IT and Finance systems were 

developed to assist, the percentage did not increase as much as anticipated and work is ongoing to continue 

the upward trend.

Seek new opportunities to expand our development of new homes/home ownership initiatives/HomeBuy 

agency services and intermediate tenure options

All targets for new developments and services, such as new homes, Mortgage Rescue, home ownership and 

HomeBuy Agency, were met or exceeded. We continue to work on our systems, processes and strategies, 

including IT and Finance, for future developments, design, land purchase and service offers.

Seek new opportunities to grow our care and support services through extending existing services and 

developing new ones

We made progress on our Radian at Home Strategy during 2013/14 through a cross-departmental working 

group and there is potential for further development in future years. We involved people we support in 

activities such as audits, recruitment and training delivery and worked hard on improving our recruitment 

to Radian Support, including appointment of a dedicated resource to drive our personalisation and quality 

principles. We began working on achieving specialist accreditation for our services where appropriate and 

along with a second Disability Conference we won £1m of Extra Care contracts.

Strategic Report
continued
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Strategic Report
continued

Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals continued

2. Sustained Growth continued

Develop a new Value for Money Strategy that includes the new duty of social value and achieve our targets

We achieved a cumulative Radian Group wide VfM efficiency dividend of £5.8m as a result of efforts by 

all departments, with both internal and external savings and efficiencies achieved. Work on assessing and 

measuring our social value started and an enhanced report for the year was produced.

3. Great Communities:
•  We have delivered 1,000 training places to our customers and people we support.

Develop and implement a scheme, working with partners, to deliver 1,000 training places and 60 jobs  

for customers by March 2015

Departments across Radian offered placements to people, such as PR and Marketing who provided work 

experience to six young people and Technical Services who offered several apprenticeships leading to two 

people becoming trades operatives and other people improving. Our dedicated Employment, Skills and 

Training team worked with internal departments and external partners and at the end of the financial  

year 160 people were in jobs and we had delivered 638 training and support placements. 

Design and launch a partnership scheme which enables our customers to have a stake in the performance  

of our organisation

In conjunction with Area Panels we completed Community Investment Plans across Radian and published an 

annual impact assessment for Community Investment. As well as reviewing our governance structure involving 

residents we became accredited with the Duke of Edinburgh scheme, launching pilot schemes in three areas. 

Projects to enable residents to benefit from our success got underway, such as a pilot for a resident reward 

scheme and the development of a holiday/leisure provision for People We Support.

Create an innovation fund to which staff and customers can bid to pilot commercially or socially  

viable schemes

The second year of this ‘If Only’ fund was as successful as the first, with almost 200 ideas from staff and 

customers leading to £91,000 being spent during the year on a wide variety of ideas that included DVDs for 

residents, sensory equipment for supported living schemes, garden makeovers, sponsorship of community 

projects like equine therapy and sports teams, digital equipment for People We Support, uniform for Radian  

at Home staff, branded promotional goods, discount railcards for staff and a Radian song.

4. Great Team:
•  75% of our employees say they are fully engaged in supporting everything we do.

Design and deliver a framework for flexible working

We have a policy in place and where appropriate actively support flexible working arrangements to give staff 

the best work-life balance possible while maximising service provision for customers. This includes remote 

working, flexible hours, job share and time off in lieu and we also improved use of office space and developed 

technology to support flexible working.

Ensure all employees who wish to do so have achieved, or will be working towards, a minimum qualification 

of NVQ level 3 (or accredited equivalent) by March 2015, subject to business needs

A variety of qualifications are available to staff across the business that support both their professional and 

personal development, including, from the Chartered Institute of Housing, City and Guilds, Finance and IT 

awarding bodies, the Institute of Management and Leadership, the Health and Safety Executive, the Chartered 

Institute of Personnel and Development, repair and maintenance industry bodies and First Aid.
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Strategic Report
continued

Our Progress Towards Achieving Our Strategic Goals continued

4. Great Team continued

Implement a recognition scheme that recognises excellent performance

As well as encouraging people to recognise excellence on an individual basis and in team meetings, we 

recognise and celebrate the excellence of our staff at an organisational level in a variety of ways including 

Instant Thank You, Flourish Awards, Radiate Articles and the annual Radian Award.

75% of our employees say they are aware of Radian’s long term goals

We had great engagement results from our annual survey, with 79% of our staff saying they were aware 

of our organisational goals. This was an improvement on last year’s result and was positive compared to the 

benchmarking group result.

75% of our employees say our internal services are good

All departments offering internal services worked to improve communication and engagement, both internally 

and externally, using a variety of events such as team meetings, specialist marketplaces and conferences. 

Departments worked on many projects including restructures, organisational changes, recruitment, employee 

engagement, internal communications, marketing and promotions, IT and Finance systems and document 

management. A survey was undertaken to assess the actual percentage and the result showed 73% of staff 

thought our internal services were good; however, the methodology did not prove reliable and the result was 

therefore not accurate so a different approach will be taken this year.

Seek external recognition for Radian as a good employer

We achieved Gold in our Investors in People accreditation, becoming the first housing association in our area 

to be awarded Champion status and we also achieved the Health and Wellbeing award at the first attempt. 

We now have a programme of continuous assessment in place to maintain these achievements, using an 

internal reviewer team with external support.

Offer further leadership development opportunities to improve capability

Managers across the business completed a specific Line Manager training programme and many took the 

opportunity to do externally recognised Institute of Leadership and Management courses. We introduced  

a talent management programme and Radian Support began work on a Management Development 

Programme and Action Learning Sets to develop skills and expertise, improve service quality and meet 

regulatory requirements. We continue to evaluate our learning and development activities to ensure they  

are effective and link them to individual appraisals.

Corporate Strategy – Housing 
Within the wider Group Corporate Plan, the Group’s Registered Providers have a collective commercial 

strategy. 

Financial Performance 
The budget strategy requires the business to budget to:

•  increase its operating margin for housing annually to increase its capacity to fund new borrowings to build 

new homes – on average 500 per year; and

•  ensure that all entities within the Group achieve a surplus before tax.

The level of margin growth and surplus before tax targeted is reflected in the budget. The Group Finance 

Committee (“GFC”) considers any changes required and recommends them to the Group Combined Board 

(“GCB”) for approval.
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Strategic Report
continued

Corporate Strategy – Housing continued
The annual budget determines the authority delegated to the Executive to spend Group funds. The Directors 

are required to deliver within budget unless there are exceptional circumstances.

Growth
The business aims to grow through adding more homes at a rate which does not threaten its financial viability. 

The impact of significant business decisions are measured through financial modelling which consists of the 

following:

1.   Strategic Framework: This sets out how we plan to achieve our vision and development growth targets 

in the long term. The GFC considers the Framework as the Committee is responsible for deciding whether 

the level of targeted performance is appropriate. GFC then recommends the Framework to the Board for 

approval.

2.  Business Plan: This reflects a shorter programme of development at a level which incorporates 

developments which we have committed to the HCA to deliver, schemes under contract with developers, 

schemes that we expect to deliver and a degree of aspirational headroom. Some longer term development 

is included to allow for multiphase schemes and anticipates development which would fit into the 

development plan within the Strategic Framework. This is considered by the New Business Committee 

(“NBC”) which in turn considers whether it is happy to delegate authority to the Executive Appraisal Panel  

(“EAP”) to commit to schemes fitting within that programme. If they approve the programme it is 

recommended to the Board for approval.

Both models are subject to scenario testing. The development programme in the business model is subject to 

the Group’s scheme appraisal model. This measures the notional subsidy in each scheme. This is an estimate of 

the amount of equity which would have to be invested in the individual scheme to allow it to support the rest 

of the scheme being funded by debt. The notional subsidy for all schemes is aggregated, creating an average 

notional subsidy over the number of homes being added to our housing stock. If approved by the Board, the 

delegation to EAP is to build (subject to certain limitations) that many homes at a maximum of that average 

notional subsidy. 

Treasury Management
The Group has a relatively complex economic legal structure and has undertaken some complicated financial 

engineering to extract and exploit value. The treasury policy provides clear guidance on limiting counterparty 

risk, whilst seeking a reasonable financial return. More detail on the Group’s capital and treasury management 

is provided on pages 31 and 32.

Corporate Strategy – Care and Support 
The care and support business has its own corporate strategy, within the wider Group Corporate Plan.

Financial Performance
The budget strategy requires the business to budget to make a small cash surplus. The business generates a 

significant social dividend by improving the lives of the people it supports. The budget is prepared annually by 

the Radian Support Board and the Radian Group Combined Board on this basis. The Radian Support Board is 

separate from the Group Combined Board but the Chair and one other Board member also sit on the Group 

Combined Board.
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Strategic Report
continued

Corporate Strategy – Care and Support continued 

Growth
The corporate strategy is to grow by winning new business at sufficient margin to achieve economies of 

scale which improve its viability in a period when commissioners are applying pressure on pricing. The growth 

strategy which determines the growth target is set by the Board.

Treasury Management 
The business has significant accumulated reserves which are in the main represented by bank deposits.  

The treasury policy provides clear guidance on limiting counterparty risk, whilst seeking a reasonable financial 

return.

How We Measure Our Performance
The Executive Management Team and the wider business use a range of performance indicators to monitor 

all of the functional areas of the business. These targets are reviewed at least annually to ensure they remain 

appropriate and challenging, with actual results reviewed monthly. A selection of these performance indicators 

are as follows:

Financial Key Performance Indicators
These Key Performance Indicators are important to the Group as they monitor our ability to generate a surplus 

for re-investment and our ability to maintain a sustainable business.

Actual
2013/14

Actual
2012/13

Actual
2011/12

Turnover from Social Housing as % of total revenue 77% 77% 78%

Surplus from social housing letting as % of total interest costs 127% 129% 105% 

Operating Margin 25% 28% 22% 

Net Margin 9% 12% 6%

Debt as a multiple of revenues 4.8 4.9 5.6

Operating surplus, adding back depreciation, as a multiple of net cash  
 interest 1.9 2.1 1.8 

Turnover (£’m) 131.6 122.3 110.0

Gearing 82% 82% 84%

Interest Cover 142% 153% 124%
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Strategic Report
continued

How We Measure Our Performance continued

Non-Financial Key Performance Indicators
In addition to monitoring financial key performance indicators, we actively monitor a substantial number of 

other key performance indicators to assess our performance and with the aim of delivering quality services to 

all our customers.

Target
2013/14

Actual
2013/14

Actual
2012/13

HouseMark 
Upper Quartile

 2012/13

% of total calls answered 97% 97% 96% n/a

% of calls dealt with within Radian Direct 80% 81% 80% n/a

Satisfaction with repairs 96% 95.8% 97.1% 81.8%

Repairs completed right first time 90% 92.8% 92.1% 89.3%

Satisfaction with ASB case handling 65% 83.5% 63.3% 79.1%

Satisfaction with ASB case outcome 77% 85.2% 60.9% 74.2%

Satisfaction with complaint handling 77% 81.2% 76.2% 73%

Satisfaction with complaint outcome 75% 78.4% 69.9% 69.5%

% of homes with gas certification 100% 100% 99.9% 99.9%

Combined void turnaround time (days) 27 26.8 24 23.7

Social and Affordable tenancies net current arrears 3.6% 1.8% 2.1% 2.2%

Tenant satisfaction with neighbourhood as place to live 78% 86% n/a 86%

Net rent arrears as % of gross rental income 1 3.63% 1.83% 2.06% n/a

Rent loss from voids as % of gross rents 2 0.54% 0.69% 0.46% 0.69%

1 The above key performance indicators link directly with one of our principal risks (outlined on page 28 of this report). 

2 Same as above
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Group is committed to effective business risk management. The main risks that may prevent the Group 

achieving its objectives are considered and reviewed quarterly by the Executive Team and the Group Audit 

Committee as part of the corporate planning process. The risks are recorded and assessed in terms of their 

impact and probability. Major risks, presenting the greatest threats to the Group, are reported to the Board 

quarterly together with action taken to manage the risks and the outcome of the action. These risk reports 

include assessments of key controls used to manage the risks. The Group has identified the major risks to 

successful achievement of its objectives as at 31 March 2014 and these are considered below.

Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Escalating liabilities 
may impact our  
growth strategy

Financial capacity to deliver planned 
growth strategy could be impaired by 
escalation of pension fund obligations 
and contributions, deflation, failure to 
deliver budget strategy, or escalation of 
interest rates beyond forecast.

KPI’s used to monitor:

• Operating margin

• Gearing.

Project to transfer pension scheme to a 
separate Radian Group section of The 
Pensions Trust completed, improving Group 
control over its pension obligations, allowing 
risks to be managed more proactively and 
permitting separate measurement and 
disclosure of the pension deficit on the 
balance sheet.

Budget strategy to increase margin each 
year, VfM and treasury strategies in place, 
Group Finance Committee oversight and 
year end treasury advisor’s validation of  
rates in business model.

Welfare reform and 
social policy changes 

Government welfare benefit and 
affordable rent policy changes and their 
economic impact causes rent arrears 
or voids to increase, and prevents us 
from achieving top decile performance 
for void turn-around and % rent debt 
collection.

KPI’s used to monitor: 

• Rent arrears

• Rent losses from voids.

Revised arrears procedures, development 
of team to enhance advice and support to 
tenants, tenancy exchange system (Home 
Swap) and new Help2Move scheme, 
PayPoint Online payment facility available 
24/7, Mobisoft text arrears notification 
facility, rent payments enabled for smart 
phones, customer ‘portal’ with payment 
facilities, welfare benefit take-up and 
‘bedroom tax’ awareness campaign targeted 
at ‘hot spot’ areas, performance reporting 
to Housing Assets and Customer Services 
Committee (“HASC”), employment strategy 
aims to provide employment related  
training for 1,000 residents and 60 jobs  
by March 2015.

Strategic Report
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Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Inconsistent gas 
servicing below 
standard

Inconsistent gas servicing falls below 
legal standards which may lead to 
an unidentified fault leading to an 
incident, and leave Radian exposed  
to the possibility of prosecution.

KPI’s used to monitor: 

• % of homes with gas certification.

Policy and process in place since early 
2012, all gas servicing brought in house 
for management supervision and daily 
operational monitoring against due 
service dates, all engineers are “gas safe” 
trained and registered with obligatory 
refresher training and re-assessment every 
five years, KPI reporting to HASC, audit 
recommendations implemented.

Risk to Radian’s 
regulatory judgement 
grading

Failure to meet HCA requirements in 
respect of governance and viability 
standards causes Radian to lose its  
G1 V1 regulatory judgement grading.

Annual review of internal controls Annual 
internal audit programme Regular review of 
policies.

Regular reporting of management Accounts 
and VfM strategy progress Board scrutiny of 
compliance with NHF codes of governance 
and conduct.

Finance Committee scrutiny of funding, 
accounting, financial planning and 
treasury management. Horizon scanning 
by governance and executive teams on 
regulatory issues.

Detailed response to HCA queries.

Failure to deliver
Radian Support’s
Business Strategy

Radian Support fails to contain 
costs, win retenders and secure new 
businesses or acquisitions, threatening 
the achievement of Radian’s growth 
strategy.

Radian Support’s four year Business Strategy, 
incorporating growth and cost targets; 

Clear targets and budgets which distinguish 
new business.

Existing monthly review of financial KPIs.

Monitoring of new developments and targets. 

Review of the growth strategy has resulted 
in a revised target of £22.5m by 2017 which 
was approved on 7 June 2013.

Radian Support  
does not meet
regulatory
requirements
leading to legal
and/or financial 
consequences

Radian Support does not meet 
regulatory requirements of CQC, 
leading to legal and/or financial 
consequences and potential regulatory 
issues with the HCA.

CQC Registration, Inspection Visits,  
and formal monitoring procedures. 

CQC compliance monitored through  
KPIs and annual report.

Strategic Report
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Nature of Risk Impact Mitigations Include

Radian Support does 
not deliver safe and
effective care and 
support services

A significant safeguarding and/or  
other serious incident, which might  
in turn damage the reputation of  
the organisation and the health  
and wellbeing of individuals.

Safeguarding Procedures, Monitoring 
visits, KPI information reported to Senior 
Management Team (“SMT”) and Board.

Business Continuity Plans and 
communication protocols in place.

Radian Support  
does not recruit  
and retain
skilled and  
competent staff

Radian Support does not recruit and 
retain skilled and competent staff:

•  Inability to attract numbers and 
appropriate staff 

• High levels of absence and turnover

•  Lack of implementation of effective 
performance management.

Value based recruitment and behavioural 
screening programme. Range of advertising 
media.

Dedicated recruitment staff and process  
to minimise recruitment lag. 

Explicit expectations around person centred 
working and dealing with challenging 
services. 

Induction and ongoing training, 1:1 and 
appraisal processes monitored through KPI.

Availability of
funding from
financial institutions

Financial institutions stop lending 
generally or to our sector.

Constant open channel of discussion with  
all lenders and treasury advisors.

New bond issue in preparation March 2014.

Maximising availability of housing stock for 
securing debts.

Capital Structure and Treasury Management
Radian Group is financed by a combination of revenue reserves, long-term loan facilities, bond finance and 

social housing grant received from Government. 

Radian has a Group wide treasury policy with tests that apply to the Group as a whole. The policy requires the 

Group to maintain a minimum level of liquidity such that there is sufficient cash and committed loan facilities 

capable of immediate draw down to cover the next six months forecast cash requirement. The Group must 

also have sufficient cash and committed loan facilities, though not necessarily capable of immediate draw 

down, to cover the higher of committed development spend and the next eighteen months forecast cash 

requirement. The policy also prioritises a lack of reliance on any one counterparty, whether through cash 

holdings or available facilities.

Capital Structure 
Group borrowings amounted to £626.5m (2013: £599.9m) of which £4.5m is due to be paid within the  

next year. 

During the year the remaining £23m reserve bond was issued, increasing the Group’s total bond debt at year 

end to £100m. £10m temporarily repaid to Nationwide/Barclays syndicate was redrawn. This left the Group 

with significant cash balances. 
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Capital Structure and Treasury Management continued

Debt Repayment Profile
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Interest rate management
The Group borrows, principally from banks at both fixed and floating rates of interest. The Group’s policy is to 

keep between 50% and 80% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest. At the year end 65% of the Group’s 

borrowings were at fixed rates of interest. 

Fixed and Floating Debt
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Total debt of £626m at 31 March 2014 consisted of:

• 65% fixed and 35% variable rate debt

• £249.2m of embedded interest rate swaps and £159.4m of fixed interest bonds

• All swaps are embedded in loan arrangements and there are no options in the portfolio.
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Capital Structure and Treasury Management continued

Currency Risk 
The Group borrows and lends only in sterling and is not exposed to currency risk. 

Financial Loan Covenant Compliance
Financial loan covenants are primarily measured by interest cover, gearing ratios, debt per home limits and 

asset cover based on property asset values. Covenants are constantly monitored and reported to the Board  

on a quarterly basis. There were no breaches of financial or non financial covenants during the year. 

Surplus Assets for Future Debt Security
As at 31 March 2014 the Group had over 3,500 unsecured completed housing properties not required for 

charging to existing debt facilities. These are sufficient to raise over £300m of future new debt on an asset 

cover ratio of 1.05% for EUV-SH properties and 1.15% for MV-T properties.

In addition, the current development programme will complete 479 properties in the period to 31 March 2015 

funded by existing already charged debt.

Future Funding Options 
At 31 March 2014, £71.2m of finance was available to Radian Group, £33.1m of which was cash. This is 

sufficient funding over the next 24 months to March 2016 for all committed and pipeline developments and 

the contractually committed affordable rent programme. 

Since the year end the Group has secured additional funding. In May 2014, the Group acquired £23m of its 

bonds at a premium of £4.9m. The Group also issued £200m of part paid bonds 2049 at an interest rate of 

5.029%, of which £100m were sold to investors and £100m retained. £1m was paid at issue, and a further 

instalment of £24m is due on the second anniversary of issue, and further instalments of £25m are receivable 

on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries. The investor has contracted to make these payments. On the same 

day the Group issued £100m of 4.622% 2044 bonds, which amortise in five annual instalments on the 26th, 

27th, 28th, 29th and 30th anniversaries. £30m were subscribed for by investors, whilst a further £70m were 

retained. The Group has sufficient funds for its current needs but has the retained bonds available for sale  

to enable further investment. 

Our People
We employ over 1,400 people within Radian and in 2013/2014:

• We recruited 411 new employees

• We completed over 2,500 learning and development days, an average of 1.82 days per employee

• We spent almost £400,000 on learning and development, an average of £279 per employee

• We had employee absence rates of 3.36%, down from 3.96% in the previous year

• We had staff turnover of 15.92%, slightly higher than the 14.57% in the previous year.

Strategic Report
continued



Radian Group Limited Report and Financial Statements 2014   33

Our People continued

The Radian Way
We have a behaviour framework that all Radian staff work to every day that clarifies what is expected 

of ourselves and others, helps us understand and identify development needs, assists us in assessing our 

performance and enables us to see how we demonstrate our values. The five behaviours are:

1. Engage:  engage yourself and others to take ownership of personal performance and 

development.

2. Change: anticipate, plan and cope effectively with business change.

3. Communicate:  work to give and receive verbal and non-verbal information to help build rapport, 

gain confidence and get commitment.

4. Service: deliver excellent service in order to meet the needs of internal and external customers.

5. Team:  work with people in a co-operative and empowering way to recognise strengths and 

maximise team performance.

Learning and Development
We use a variety of methods to support the learning and development of our staff, including:

• Academy – a selection of Personal Development workshops and courses

•  Radian Mentoring Programme – an opportunity for staff to have a personal mentor who will provide 

bespoke, personal and one on one development

• Radian Line Manager programme – a development programme for our managers

• Qualifications programme – depending on individual and job role requirements.

Our aim is for staff to be able to adapt to changing needs with the skills, capabilities and dedication to do so 

in the right way. We believe that learning and development is vital to this and an intrinsic element in enabling 

us to deliver the quality of service we strive for. Our approach to learning and development means that as an 

organisation we ensure both individual and team plans can be met.

Work Placement Programme 
Radian participates in the Action for Employment (“A4E”) programme supporting people who are at risk of 

becoming unemployed long-term and assisting them in getting into work. The placements are open to young 

people aged 18-24 years and are for 30 hours per week, lasting for six months. At the end of each placement 

the young person is guaranteed an interview for the Casual Pool and they are also welcome to apply for 

permanent and fixed-term roles within Radian or for any external vacancies. To date, we have delivered 21 

placements with a success rate of 86%, twice the national average, with placements being offered in many 

departments across the organisation.

Gender Analysis
Radian is committed to achieving equality of opportunity throughout its organisation both in relation to the 

homes and services we provide and in fulfilling our responsibilities as an employer. We are committed to and 

encourage a diverse culture that challenges prejudicial language and behaviours and breaks down barriers 

to opportunities. We regard promoting the principles of diversity and equality as core to all our corporate 

objectives and activities.
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Our People continued

Gender Analysis continued

Group Combined 
Board

Senior Management 
Team

Radian Support  
Board

Independent 
Committee Members

Employees

Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female

11 3 17 19 7 2 2 4 499 922

Staff Engagement 
In total 71% of our staff took part in the 2013 Engagement Survey and we saw further progress with an 

increase in engagement of 5% from 2012, as well as the added bonus of £2,200 being donated to a charity 

chosen by the staff and approved by our Staff Forum.

We saw improvements in almost all areas and highlights included:

• 80% are engaged with Radian

• 83% are proud to work for Radian

• 85% would recommend Radian as a good place to work

• 79% are satisfied with Radian

• 82% feel committed to Radian’s goals

• 81% intend to be working for Radian in a year’s time

• 81% say working for Radian makes them want to do the best work they can.

Corporate Social Responsibility Statement

Ethical Conduct and Practice

We have adopted ‘Where people flourish’ as our vision

•  We recognise the way we do business has an impact on peoples’ lives as well as on the communities and 

environment in which they live. We are committed to creating communities and opportunities where 

people can flourish.

We have adopted ‘choice, opportunity and trust’ as our values

• We value the trust and support of those who deal with us and we will work to gain and retain that trust.

We strive to achieve the highest ethical standards and practices in all aspects of our business

• We have a Code of Conduct for Board and Committee members, employees and involved residents.

• We expect our employees to work in the Radian Way, our behavioural framework based on our core values.

•  Through our probity policies we encourage all employees to raise any concerns and promptly report any 

potentially improper, unethical or illegal behaviour or conduct they come across in the course of their work 

or in connection with their work activities.

Relationships with Stakeholders

Customers and people we support

•  We believe integrity underpins all successful business activities and relationships. We are customer focused, 

aiming to provide only products and services that are reliable, safe, commercially sound and of a consistent 

quality, which results in both social value and value for money.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Statement continued

Relationships with Stakeholders continued

Customers and people we support continued

•  We adopt a partnership approach in meeting customer needs, developing clear lines and methods of 

communication to ensure we listen to customers and people we support and are accountable to them.

•  We adopt a flexible and responsive approach to service delivery, recognising the balance between meeting 

customer expectations, the need to build sustainable communities and ensuring efficient operations that 

deliver value for money.

Suppliers and business partners

•  We adopt a partnership approach with our business partners and major suppliers; with a turnover in excess 

of £100m our financial strength allows us to invest in work with our local authority partners to help them 

to meet their strategic objectives.

•  With the introduction of the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012, Radian’s drive and commitment 

to deliver more to our residents and communities has never been more important. We have adopted a 

‘commercial head, social heart’ approach to procurement; recognising that effective specifications and 

positive contractual relationships enables us to influence suppliers and stakeholders, support SMEs, 

promote and measure social value and deliver value for money.

Environment

•  In 2006 the Communities and Local Government Association published the “Code for Sustainable Homes: 

A Step-change in sustainable home building practice”. This measures the sustainability of a home against 

design categories including energy and water efficiency, waste, pollution and health and well-being and 

rates the “whole home” as a complete package. A home can achieve a sustainability rating from one to six 

stars where one star represents the entry level and six stars represents the highest achievable sustainability; 

in terms of energy efficiency six stars would equate to a zero carbon home. All Radian homes are designed 

to achieve a code level three as a minimum standard and code level four or above where achievable.

•  We pro-actively promote improving the energy efficiency of our stock and our residents in their homes; we 

have a high average SAP energy rating of 74 for our stock and an ongoing home insulation programme. 

During 2013/14 we insulated a further 701 homes and improved the energy efficiency of others by 

installing 989 high efficiency boilers as part of our ongoing planned maintenance programme.

•  We also have an active programme of installing photo voltaic (“PV”) panels on our stock to generate 

electricity from solar power; currently over 340 homes have PV panels fitted and we plan to fit a further 

450 installations. Our head office also has PV panels fitted and the system has generated over 30,000 KWh 

of power, reduced our carbon emissions by over 16 tonnes and accounted for 7% of our power usage 

since installation.

•  We have a small team of energy advisors who offer advice and guidance to residents in fuel poverty aiming 

to change behaviours and thus reduce energy use, fuel bills and their impact on the environment.

• All this activity is guided by our sustainability strategy which is due for review during 2014/15.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Statement continued

Relationships with Stakeholders continued

Equality and Diversity

•  Radian’s Everyone Matters equality and diversity strategy has been adopted because we believe equality 

and diversity means more than meeting statutory, regulatory, or legal requirements; we have therefore 

embraced the essence of the current General Equality Duty as set out in Section 149 of the Equality  

Act 2010. 

• Our strategy encompasses all the protected characteristics referred to in the Equality Act 2010:

 • Race • Disability • Age

 • Gender  • Sexual orientation • Marriage and civil partnership

 • Gender reassignment • Religion or belief • Pregnancy and maternity

•  Everyone Matters adds value and more importantly makes a difference to customers, employees and 

other service users. The strategy is forward-thinking, seeks to consider the needs of present and future 

generations and communities and supports our core values. By listening and understanding diverse  

needs we will ensure no customer, employee, partner or other stakeholder encounters a service which  

is unresponsive to their needs.

•  We know that good quality housing, support and care has a strong correlation to employment, health, 

education and people’s sense of belonging so we will endeavour to deliver outcomes that change lives 

beyond the provision of housing, support and care. There are several specific drivers which underpin 

our approach to equality and diversity in identifying and meeting the diverse needs of those living in our 

communities.

•  We recognise the critical role partnerships play in supporting a range of solutions within our communities 

including partners working together to identify local needs, creating collaborative opportunities and 

agreeing future action plans in particular areas. One of our key aims is sustained growth for the local 

ambition of people and where necessary we will support the capacity of others to do this more effectively. 

We will continue to develop a diverse range of new and existing partnerships to deliver real opportunities 

for communities to shape and influence the decisions that affect them.

•  One of our corporate goals is to have 90% of our customers say they trust us and therefore, we will seek 

to understand the diverse needs of our customers, actively listening to them to understand their individual 

circumstances and seeking to tailor our services to meet the needs of diverse groups.

•  All of our employees receive training on equality and diversity issues; this is also offered to members of our 

Boards and involved residents. Every individual within the organisation has a responsibility towards equality 

and diversity and an Equality Analysis (“EA”) is undertaken for all our policies and procedures that impact 

on customers and employees.

•  We seek to provide clear and consistent leadership on equality and diversity, with the Board and the senior 

management team actively supporting equality and diversity. Our commitment to equality and diversity is 

clearly communicated throughout the organisation, with information available in accessible formats for our 

customers, employees, and suppliers.

•  We continue to build our knowledge base and develop our understanding of the needs of our diverse 

communities through customer profiling information. This will assist with service planning and employment 

strategies for a diverse customer and employee base.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Statement continued

Relationships with Stakeholders continued

Equality and Diversity continued

•  Cohesion is about relationships between different groups and we use our local knowledge to promote this; 

differences include age, income, place of residence or lifestyle and can cause divides in some areas. 

• Our current priority actions are to:

1. Increase our customer profiling data

2. Support managers to use customer knowledge and profiling to inform improvements in services

3. Analyse the impact of new and reviewed policies, processes and procedures on equality

4. Inform our staff and members of their responsibilities under the Equality Act

5. Increase the diversity of our customer consultation

6. Profile our staff and Board members

7. Work with contractors and share profiling knowledge to improve service, where appropriate.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 24 July 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Margaret Scott

Chair

Strategic Report
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Value for Money

Achieving Excellence
We aim to provide quality services that represent value for money (“VfM”). This statement outlines how we 

are doing this. It is a short version of the full statement accessible in the VfM section of our website, along 

with relevant supporting information.

Our 2013-16 ‘Value for customers’ VfM strategy was developed with our staff, customers, Residents Council 

and Board. It commits us to efficiency savings that generate cash to invest in corporate priorities. It outlines 

how we plan to provide quality services, be clear and open in what we do, live up to our values and prepare 

for challenges, such as welfare reform, that will affect our customers and us.

For us, VfM means providing quality services at the best price we can. To do this we focus on:

•  Economy – we aim to reduce costs or the amount of resources needed

•  Efficiency – we must make the best use of our assets and resources to produce expected standards  

of service

•  Effectiveness – doing the ‘right’ thing – ensuring our services meet our customers’ expectations.

We will deliver the best results by achieving a balance of all three.

VfM is Essential to Meeting Our Objectives
VfM is closely linked to our purpose of creating great housing and care and support services. It is one of the 

key strategic objectives in our 2012-15 corporate plan: ‘From good to great’, and is an essential ingredient for 

success in tough times.

We want to show our customers and other stakeholders that we spend our income wisely, recognising that a 

proportion of it is from the public purse. We therefore aim to reinvest surpluses in our corporate plan priorities 

for the benefit of communities, as our customers expect, whilst maintaining our financial strength.

Our Board sets clear annual targets for efficiency and the quality of our services. Both the Board and Residents 

Council scrutinise quarterly performance (comparing it with the performance of similar organisations), which 

we publish on our website.

Are We Doing What We Promised?
Our VfM register recorded an efficiency saving of £1.6m for 2013/14, over half way to our target of at least 

£3m by the end of March 2016. This is in addition to £4.16m and better service delivery from VfM reviews 

and better buying decisions under the previous 2011-13 strategy.

Other 2013/14 VfM performance highlights include the following:

•  of the 11 service performance indicators we can compare against our peers, three were in the best 10% 

of performance, seven were in the top 25% and one (empty-home turnaround) was in the upper middle 

quartile of performance

•  arrears for social and affordable rent tenancies fell to 1.8% despite welfare reform, from 2.1% in 2012/13

•  our financial inclusion and welfare benefits officers helped customers claim an extra £3.7m in welfare 

benefits

•  we saved over £250,000 through creating our own pension scheme. We estimate that over the nine 

financial years from 2013/14 to 2022/23 this initiative will save a further £1.8m.
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Value for Money
continued

Are We Doing What We Promised? continued
•  our Board considered the case for outsourcing our planned maintenance service or continuing it in-house 

through Radian Technical Services. The review concluded that the quality and cost of Radian Technical 

Services’ work was very competitive in its own right and that there was a clear tax advantage from doing 

this work internally. The cost benefits and high levels of customer satisfaction compared with our peers, 

identified through independent analysis, led us to decide to continue to use our internal direct labour 

organisation.

Scrutiny of Our Performance

Residents Council
We consult our Residents Council on plans, budgets and policies that affect customers and they scrutinise and 

inspect our overall performance. Two Group Combined Board members are residents and residents also sit on 

Group committees.

Do Customers Receive VfM for the Rent they Pay?
At the end of March 2014, our rolling satisfaction survey showed that 82% of our tenants said their rent 

provided good VfM (an increase of 1% since 2012) and 86% were satisfied with their neighbourhood as 

a place to live. Overall satisfaction for tenants improved to 88%, in the top quarter of our peers. Last year 

almost 4,000 customers gave us their valuable ideas and feedback regarding our performance.

How Do We Compare to Others?
One of the ways we compare the cost and quality of our services with others is through membership of 

HouseMark. Our 2012/13 performance is published on our website’s VfM section and shows that out of 

31 organisations we came fifth in terms of total cost of housing management. Our performance has been 

assessed as ‘good and low cost’.

Our 2013/14 detailed management cost results will be published by HouseMark at the end of November 2014 

and will then be included on our website. In 2013/14 we restructured our senior housing management team 

to improve performance and we are monitoring the results of this. We saved £0.3m per annum through this 

measure, and re-invested it in new frontline income, neighbourhood and advice staff.

Our Return on Assets

Managing Our Assets: Reviewing Performance
In general, our assets are in good condition, high demand and perform well on financial return and social 

benefit. Our relatively compact geographical spread balances the efficiency benefits of concentration with the 

risks of over concentration. To ensure this continues, we focus on consolidating stock through development  

to meet demand in our existing geographical areas.

For social housing assets which underperform against financial return and social benefit requirements, we 

have a record of either selling, redeveloping, or changing customer group or tenure to improve performance. 

The options for these assets are considered using the same criteria and methodology we use for appraising 

new investment opportunities. Properties are reviewed for change of use and disposal on a scheme by scheme 

basis in view of the higher management costs associated with outlying individual properties. These option 

appraisals are carried out by a newly appointed business analyst.
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Value for Money
continued

Our Return on Assets continued

Managing Our Assets: Reviewing Performance continued

We are reviewing all properties, identifying which are unconstrained by planning conditions, stock transfer 

covenants or other restrictions to identify where the contribution from low performing assets might be 

improved through change of use or tenure or disposal when next void. We will use the gap between their 

Vacant Possession Value and Existing Use Value – Social Housing (“Net Present Value”) as an indicator of 

where these options should be considered on financial grounds.

We are also increasing our focus on active asset management, identifying homes where management is more 

expensive than the norm e.g. single flats in blocks managed by others and large and old properties converted 

into flats which do not perform to modern standards.

To improve this process we have recently added the capability to analyse our asset data to identify unpopular 

homes and those which are expensive to manage and maintain. Such homes will go through our established 

option appraisal process, to determine the best possible use for the asset, consistent with our objectives. This 

system has already led us to review schemes where the day-to-day repairs spend exceeds either twice our 

average or 40% of the gross rent. It also identified schemes where the tenant turnover rate exceeded 20% 

p.a. We are identifying what causes these outliers to inform appropriate action.

We are also reviewing homes which generate a contribution below the rate we require for new developments.

Since 2011 we have been converting half our social housing voids (excluding sheltered and supported homes) 

to affordable rents (80% of market rent). As at 31 March 2014, of the 785 (2012/13: 567) empty properties 

we re-let in 2013/14, we converted 217 (2012/13: 228) to affordable rent. In 2013/14, we raised an extra 

£526,000 from these conversions, increasing our borrowing capacity. In some areas, however, low values 

mean that when a property becomes available it remains at social rent.

New Homes
We build homes to meet local need. As well as appraising for financial viability, we appraise development 

schemes for suitability for our client markets, maintenance costs and social value. The affordability and impact 

of all our developments are scrutinised for approval by our Executive Appraisal Panel and New Business 

Committee (according to respective delegations).

We are members of the SDS Catalyst Development Benchmarking Club for London and the South East. During 

2013/14, of 10 organisations Radian was ranked 3rd most cost effective for acquisition costs per m2 (£1,390) 

and 4th most cost effective for build costs per m2 (£1,931).

Overall satisfaction with the quality of our new homes in 2013/14 was 97% (2012/13: 95%), suggesting we’d 

got a good balance between ‘cost’ and ‘quality’. During 2015 we’ll be doing a VfM review of build costs to 

identify further efficiencies.

In 2013/14 the Group completed 508 new homes. We plan to sustain a programme of 500 homes per 

year. This will be a blended programme sustained by utilising sales income, grant and increased rent from 

conversion of existing homes from social to affordable rent and a build cost reduction strategy, including  

a target saving of 5% for the next two years.

We have issued £300m of bonds with deferrals to spread our refinancing risk and ensure long-term funding 

for our plans. We estimate that the deferred structure will reduce our net interest cost by over £2m in 2014/15.
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Value for Money
continued

Our Return on Assets continued

So How Do We Measure What We Get Back From Our Assets?
We consider our return on assets from three distinct viewpoints.

The first is to measure the return on our joint investment in homes with the Homes and Communities Agency 

and other providers of grant funding. In the main we receive this grant to enable us to charge sub-market 

rents. To make this measure meaningful, we have to add the social dividend represented by the discount  

to our net income from the homes when measuring our joint return on the total investment in our homes.  

We estimate this discount to be 20% for homes let at affordable rents and 34% discount for homes let  

at social rents.

The second is the financial return on our investment in our homes net of the grant we have received towards 

building them. This ignores both the social dividend represented by the discounted rents, and the grant 

investment. We have been investing in homes for many decades, and it is the growth of the return on  

those homes which generates the capacity to invest in new homes which generate far lower returns.

The third measure takes into account the fact that a large proportion of our investment in homes has been 

borrowed from lenders, and that the net investment in the business is the reserves we have accumulated  

over the years through retaining our surpluses in the business.

We considered measuring the financial return on our homes based on their current value, but decided against 

this as the only appropriate valuation methodology is Existing Use Value – Social Housing (“EUVSH”). As 

EUVSH is calculated by capitalising the income stream derived from the homes, underperformance of those 

assets will generate a lower income stream which will depress the valuation, masking the underperformance.

Measure 1 – Return on total investment in homes (adjusted for social dividend and grant investment)

Measure 1 is calculated by adding the net income received from our homes, after deducting the costs of 

managing and maintaining them to the estimated discount which rents represent against the market and 

calculating this as a percentage of the total investment in those homes (including grant).

This indicates the total return including social dividend which we and our grant funders have achieved from 

that investment. We estimate that on this basis our annual return on the total investment in these assets  

was 7.3% in 2014 (2013: 7.3%), and has averaged 7.0% a year over the last three years.

Measure 2 – Return on Radian’s investment in homes

Measure 2 is calculated by dividing the net income received from our homes, after deducting the costs  

of managing and maintaining them by our investment in those homes (net of grant).

The return on our historic investment in homes net of grant was 4.7% in 2014 (2013: 5.0%) and has 

averaged 4.5% over the last three years. This is higher than the return on the new assets we are building 

(which we estimate to be 1.9%). This return will therefore fall if we increase production of new affordable 

homes, and increase if we reduce such new home production.

Measure 3 – Return on Radian’s investment net of debt

Measure 3 is calculated by dividing Radian’s post interest net surplus for the year by its retained surpluses, 

which are the only funds which Radian has itself provided once borrowings are deducted.

This return was 9.5% in 2014 (2013:13.3%) and averaged 11.5% a year over the last three years. This fell 

in 2014 due to continued investment in both new and existing social housing and services, coupled with the 

10% increase in Radian’s reserves. We expect this rate to continue to fall as interest rates rise.
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Value for Money
continued

Our Return on Assets continued

Three-year average 2014 2013 2012

Measure 1 –  Return on total investment in homes  
(adjusted for social dividend and grant investment) 7.0% 7.3% 7.3% 6.4%

Measure 2 – Return on Radian’s investment in homes 4.5% 4.7% 5.0% 3.7%

Measure 3 – Return on Radian’s investment net of debt 11.5% 9.5% 13.3% 11.7%

Social Value: the Social Return on Our Investment

Why it’s Important to Deliver Social and Environmental Value Too
We are a social business whose success cannot just be measured by our financial efficiency. We have always 

invested in communities. We recognise that we need to communicate better about what we do, and ask  

in more detail “do we make a difference?”, especially as social value is at the heart of our VfM agenda.

How Do We Measure Our Social Value Impact?
We know the social impact of some of our investments (for example the recent review of our employment, 

skills and training project) but it is an area we aim to improve on. We are looking at different approaches – 

such as the Housing Association Charitable Trust (“HACT”) model for assessing social value and also a matrix 

method whereby our staff plot the impact of a project (low/high scaled) against the cost of a project (again 

low/high scaled) so we can concentrate on projects that deliver the most impact at the best available cost.

Details of the difference our investment makes to our customers, employees, communities and the people we 

support are set out in full in the VfM section of our website.

Our aspirations for 2014/15 and 2015/16 are linked to our strategic goals and are set out in the VfM section 

of our website.
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The Board is responsible for preparing the report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable 

law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP).

Company and Registered Provider legislation in the United Kingdom requires the Board to prepare financial 

statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and 

Company at the end of the year and of the surplus or deficit of the Group and Company for the year  

then ended.

In preparing these financial statements the Board is required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•  follow applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and the SORP 2010, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

•  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

Group and Company will continue in business.

The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any 

time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable it to ensure that the financial statements 

comply with the Industrial and Provident Society Acts 1965 to 2002, The Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 

and the Accounting Direction for Social Housing in England 2012. It is also responsible for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 

other irregularities.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Report of the Board is prepared in accordance with the  

SORP 2010.

The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information on  

the Group’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of  

the financial statements and other information included in the annual reports may differ from legislation  

in other jurisdictions.

Statement of Board Responsibilities



44   Radian Group Limited Report and Financial Statements 2014

We have audited the financial statements of Radian Group Limited for the year ended 31 March 2014 which 

comprise the Group and parent company income and expenditure accounts, the Group and parent company 

balance sheets, the Group and parent company statement of total recognised surpluses and deficits, the 

Group cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 29 to the financial statements. The financial reporting 

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 

Standards (UK GAAP).

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of  

Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other 

purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 

than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 

opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of the Directors and Auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Board Responsibilities, the Board of Management is responsible 

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.  

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable 

law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the 

Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 

to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether 

caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate 

to the Group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in 

the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 

information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 

acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material 

misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on Financial Statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

•  give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 

and of the Group’s surplus and parent company’s results for the year then ended;

•  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 

and

•  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and 

Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Social Housing in England 2012.

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Radian Group Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Radian Group Limited continued

Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year  

for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on Which We are Required to Report by Exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us  

to report to you if, in our opinion:

•  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit 

have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

•  the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Helen George (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 

London, United Kingdom
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Note
2014

£’000
2013
£’000

Turnover

Group and share of joint venture 133,593 124,204

Less: share of joint venture (2,116) (1,873)

Total Turnover 3 131,477 122,331

Cost of sales 3 (8,923) (7,616)

Operating costs 3 (88,948) (80,050)

Operating Surplus 3 33,606 34,665

Share of operating (loss)/profit in joint venture (4) 21

Surplus from sale of housing properties 3 1,360 1,301

Surplus on sale of investments – 814

Interest receivable and other income 4 1,485 1,783

Interest payable and similar charges 5 (24,722) (24,095)

Net other finance costs 5 (243) (344)

Surplus on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation 6 11,482 14,145

Tax (charge)/credit on surplus on ordinary activities 7 (70) 306

Surplus on Ordinary Activities for the Year 20 11,412 14,451

All activities derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 53 to 88 form part of these financial statements.

Group Statement of Recognised 
Surpluses and Deficits
Year ended 31 March 2014

Note
2014

£’000
2013
£’000

Surplus for the financial year 20 11,412 14,451

Fair value movement on investments (242) 407

Actuarial loss relating to pension scheme 22 (1,643) (16,123)

Total Recognised Surpluses and Deficits Relating to the Year 9,527 (1,265)

Group Income and Expenditure Account
Year ended 31 March 2014 
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Note
2014
£’000

2013
Restated
(note 28)

£’000

Turnover 861 812

Operating costs (846) (121)

Operating Surplus 15 691

Interest receivable and other income 4 3,425 –

Interest payable and similar charges 5 (3,431) –

Net other finance costs 5 2 (13)

Surplus on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation 11 678

Tax charge on surplus on ordinary activities – –

Surplus on Ordinary Activities for the Year 21 11 678

All activities derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 53 to 88 form part of these financial statements.

Company Statement of Recognised 
Surpluses and Deficits
Year ended 31 March 2014

Note
2014
£’000

2013
Restated
(note 28)

£’000

Surplus for the financial year 21 11 678

Actuarial loss relating to pension scheme (193) (1,744)

Total recognised surpluses and deficits relating to the year (182) (1,066)

Prior period adjustment 21 (1,717)

Total Recognised Surpluses and Deficits Since Last Annual Report (1,899)

Company Income and Expenditure Account
Year ended 31 March 2014 
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Note £’000
2014
£’000 £’000

2013
£’000

Fixed Assets

Housing properties – depreciated cost 10 1,126,584 1,072,277

Social housing grants 10 (430,260) (416,431)

Other public grants 10 (10,521) (10,521)

Net book value of housing properties 685,803 645,325

HomeBuy loan 66,586 72,880

HomeBuy grant (54,053) (59,268)

Other fixed assets 10 13,235 13,738

Other fixed asset investments 12 25 –

Investments in joint venture:

 Share of gross assets 12 16,906 17,303

 Share of gross liabilities 12 (14,967) (15,520)

Net investment in joint venture 1,939 1,783

Total non-housing property fixed assets 27,732 29,133

Total fixed assets 713,535 674,458

Current Assets

Properties for sale 13 4,548 7,429

Stock 14 207 140

Debtors 15 23,745 19,438

Short term investments 16 38,129 32,686

Cash at bank and in hand 16 33,803 37,870

100,432 97,563

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year 17 (39,874) (41,922)

Net Current Assets 60,558 55,641

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 774,093 730,099

Group Balance Sheet
31 March 2014 
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Note
2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Pension Liability 22 23,026 24,282

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year 18 633,110 597,387

656,136 621,669

Capital and Reserves

Called up share capital – –

Designated reserve 20 6,864 6,864

Restricted reserve 20 577 591

Revenue reserve 20 100,224 100,441

Investment revaluation reserve 20 292 534

Group Funds 117,957 108,430

774,093 730,099

The financial statements of Radian Group Limited, registered number 03482228, on pages 46 to 88 were 

approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 24 July 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Margaret Scott Mandy Clarke

Chair Board Member

Group Balance Sheet continued
31 March 2014
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Note
2014

£’000

2013
Restated
(note 28)

£’000

Fixed Assets

Investment in subsidiary 11 50 50

Other fixed assets 11 9 9

59 59

Current Assets

Stock 14 – –

Debtors:

 Due within one year 15 9,294 885

 Due after more than one year 15 112,971 107,486

Cash at bank and in hand 16 3,083 4,018

125,348 112,389

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year 17 (17,766) (11,732)

Net Current Assets 107,582 100,657

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 107,641 100,716

Pension Liability 1,429 1,724

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year 18 110,338 102,936

Reserves

Revenue deficit 21 (4,126) (3,944)

Company Deficits 21 (4,126) (3,944)

107,641 100,716

The financial statements of Radian Group Limited, registered number 03482228, on pages 46 to 88 were 

approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 24 July 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Margaret Scott Mandy Clarke

Chair Board Member

Company Balance Sheet 
31 March 2014 
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Note £’000
2014
£’000 £’000

2013
£’000

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 1 44,906 59,306

Returns on Investments and Servicing of Finance

Interest paid (24,720) (23,984)

Interest received 342 1,783

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities (24,378) (22,201)

Taxation Paid (47) (263)

Capital Expenditure and Financial Investment

Sales of housing properties 4,543 3,632

Sale of other fixed assets 32 27

Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (1,014) (1,452)

Payments to acquire and develop housing properties (70,214) (79,583)

Armed Forces Home Ownership scheme grant receipts – 5,129

Armed Forces Home Ownership scheme advances – (5,129)

HomeBuy loans redemptions 7,054 4,812

Social Housing Grant received 14,498 17,147

Net Cash Outflow from Capital Expenditure (45,101) (55,417)

Net Cash Outflow before Management of Liquid  
 Resources and Financing (24,620) (18,575)

Management of Liquid Resources

Proceeds from sale of gilt previously held as a short 
 term investment – 25,761

Monies placed into short term investments (5,606) (18,042)

Acquisition of fixed asset investment (25) –

Employer pension contribution (5,370) –

Net Cash (Outflow)/Inflow from Management  
 of Liquid Resources (11,001) 7,719

Financing

Loan repayments (6,342) (4,339)

Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing including  
 premiums on issue 37,896  (12,550)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing 31,554 (16,889)

Decrease in cash 2/3 (4,067) (27,745)

Opening cash as at 1 April 2013 37,870 65,615

Closing cash as at 31 March 2014 33,803 37,870

Group Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 March 2014 
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Notes to the Group Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 March 2014 

1. Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

£’000
2014
£’000 £’000

2013
£’000

Operating surplus 33,606 34,665

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 12,970 12,341

Loss on disposal of non-housing assets 350 –

Movement in joint venture (156) (221)

Pension scheme cost 2,226 1,091

Decrease in stocks 3,703  627

Increase in debtors and prepayments (7,772) (6,977)

(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accruals (21) 17,780

11,300 24,641

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 44,906 59,306

2. Analysis of Changes in Net Debt

At
 1 April

2013
£’000

Cash
flow

£’000

Other
 non-cash

changes
£’000

At
 31 March

2014
 £’000

Cash at bank and in hand 37,870 (4,067) – 33,803

Liquid resources (short term investments) 32,686 5,606 (163) 38,129

Housing loans repayable within one year (6,342) 6,342 (4,478) (4,478)

Housing loans repayable in more than one year (516,598) (9,875) 4,478 (521,995)

Bond repayable in more than one year (77,000) (23,000) – (100,000)

Net Debt (529,384) (24,994) (163) (554,541)

3. Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Debt

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Decrease in cash in the year (4,067) (27,745)

Cash (inflow)/outflow from debt and lease financing (26,533) 17,596

Cash inflow/(outflow) from liquid resources 5,606 (7,719)

Movement in net debt in the year (24,994) (17,868)

Non cash change in liquid resources (163) 251

Net Debt at Beginning of Year (529,384) (511,767)

Net Debt at End of Year (554,541) (529,384)
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1. Legal Status
Radian Group Limited is a company limited by guarantee and is registered with the Homes and Communities 

Agency (“HCA”) as a Registered Provider.

2. Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in the current and in the prior year in dealing with 

items which are considered material in relation to the Group’s financial statements.

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards under the 

historical cost convention and in accordance with the SORP 2010, in accordance with The Accounting Direction 

for Social Housing in England from April 2012 and the Industrial & Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 2002.

Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, details of which can be found on  

page 16 of the Board Report.

Basis of Consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the accounts of the parent company and all of its subsidiaries at 

31 March. Intra group balances, surpluses and deficits are eliminated on consolidation. 

Radian Group Limited is the ultimate parent undertaking and has taken advantage of the exemption contained 

in FRS 8 not to disclose transactions or balances with entities which form part of the Group and which are 

also Registered Providers. This is the case except for intra group transactions with the following subsidiary 

undertakings and joint venture which are not Registered Providers regulated by the Regulation Committee of  

the HCA: Radian Support Limited, Radian Capital Plc and Affinity (Reading) Limited. The Accounting Direction for 

Social Housing in England 2012 requires Registered Providers to disclose transactions between regulated and non 

regulated group members. This requirement includes the disclosure of the basis of recharges and apportionment 

of revenues, costs, assets and liabilities.

Joint Arrangements
Windsor and District Housing Association (the “Association”) has invested in a PFI project to refurbish, 

manage and maintain an estate for Reading Borough Council with Southern Housing Group, another 

Registered Provider. The Association has a 50% investment in share capital and redeemable loan notes in the 

joint venture, Affinity (Reading) Holdings Limited which in turn holds 100% of the share capital of Affinity 

(Reading) Limited which operates the PFI contract. This is a joint venture that is included in the Group financial 

statements by proportionately consolidating the Group’s share of assets, liabilities, profits and losses, using the 

gross equity method of accounting.

The Association is also in partnership with Southern Housing Group to deliver housing and community 

development services for the estate under the PFI contract and has accounted for its 50% share in Affinity 

Housing Services as a “joint arrangement that is not an entity” according to FRS 9. The Association recognised 

its share of assets and liabilities on the balance sheet and has recognised its share of turnover and expenditure 

in the income and expenditure account. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2014
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2. Accounting Policies continued

Turnover
Turnover, all from continuing operations, represents rental income net of losses from voids, service charge 

income, fee income and revenue grant receivable, income from first tranche sales and from sales of properties 

built for sale.

Value Added Tax (“VAT”)
The Group is VAT registered, but a large proportion of its income, namely rent, is exempt for VAT purposes 

and thus gives rise to a partial exemption calculation. Expenditure is therefore shown inclusive of VAT and  

the input VAT recovered is shown in the income and expenditure account.

Social Housing Grant (“SHG”) and Other Public Subsidy
Where developments have been financed by Social Housing Grant (“SHG”), the cost is reduced by the amount 

of grant receivable. SHG due from the HCA or received in advance is included as a current asset or liability. 

SHG received in respect of revenue expenditure is credited to the income and expenditure account in the  

same period as the expenditure to which it relates.

SHG is subordinated to the repayment of loans by agreement with the Homes and Communities Agency 

(“HCA”). SHG released on sale of a property may be repayable but is normally available to be recycled and  

is credited to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund and included in the balance sheet in creditors.

Shared Ownership Transactions
First tranche sales are treated as turnover. Subsequent staircasing sales are treated as surplus on sales of 

housing properties. Deficits on schemes are recognised as soon as they are foreseen.

Cyclical Repairs and Maintenance
The actual costs of cyclical repairs and maintenance are charged to the income and expenditure account as 

incurred.

Purchase and Sale of Property
Purchases and sales of property are accounted for at the point at which the contract becomes unavoidable; 

this is usually on exchange of contracts.

Properties for Sale
Completed properties for outright sale and properties under construction are valued at the lower of cost 

and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and direct development overheads. Unsold 

properties are classified as current assets in the balance sheet.

Fixed Assets – Housing Properties
Housing properties are held at cost less depreciation and grant received. Cost includes acquisition expenditure, 

development costs and directly attributable administration costs. 

Housing properties are split between the structure and major components which require periodic replacement. 

Replacement or restoration of such major components is capitalised and depreciated over the average 

estimated useful life.

Housing properties in the course of construction are held at cost and are not depreciated. They are transferred 

to completed properties when handed over for letting or sale. Donated land is treated as both a cost of land 

and grant received.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014

2. Accounting Policies continued

Fixed Assets – Housing Properties continued

Shared ownership properties are split proportionately between fixed and current assets based on the 

proportion of the share of equity sold in the first tranche. The element of a property anticipated to be  

sold as a first tranche sale is recognised as a current asset and the remainder as a fixed asset. 

HomeBuy
HomeBuy transactions are grants received from the HCA and passed on to an eligible beneficiary. The Group 

has the benefit of a fixed charge on the property entitling it to a share of the proceeds on the sale of the 

property by the beneficiary.

HomeBuy loans are stated at the amount advanced less provision for bad debts. SHG is receivable from the 

HCA and is utilised to reduce the cost of these loans.

Depreciation

Freehold buildings and components

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost (net of grant) to estimated residual value on a straight line basis 

over the estimated useful economic life of assets at the following annual rates:.

Structure 100 years Bathroom 30 years

Boilers 15 years Heating 30 years

Kitchens 20 years Windows 30 years

Photovoltaics 20 years Sheltered Housing 50 years

Other fixed assets

Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets at the following 

annual rates:

Freehold premises 2% 

Office equipment 20% – 331/3%

Office furniture and development equipment 10% 

Motor vehicles, yard plant and machinery 25%

Leasehold property depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Impairment 
Housing properties are subject to impairment reviews annually. Other assets are reviewed for impairment  

if there is an indication that impairment may have occurred.

Where there is evidence of impairment, fixed assets are written down to the recoverable amount. Any such 

write down is charged to operating surpluses.
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2. Accounting Policies continued

Pensions
The Group’s pension arrangements comprise four defined benefit schemes, a defined contribution scheme and 

one multi–employer scheme. Lump sum payments are being made to reduce the deficits in the defined benefit 

schemes which are closed to new members.

Where the Group can identify its share of scheme assets and liabilities in a scheme, these are included on  

the balance sheet. The cost of providing pensions is charged to the income and expenditure account over  

the periods during which the Group benefits from the employees’ services. Pension assets are measured using 

market values. Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and 

discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency  

to the liability. The pension scheme surplus (to the extent that it is recoverable) or deficit is recognised in full. 

The movement in the scheme surplus/deficit is split between operating charges, finance items and, in the 

statement of recognised surpluses and deficits, actuarial gains and losses. 

The pension charge represents the employer contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting 

period for the defined contribution scheme, the multi–employer scheme (Growth Plan) and the National 

Health Service scheme.

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the surplus for the year and takes into account deferred taxation. Deferred 

tax is provided for on differences between the treatment of certain items of accounting and taxation purposes. 

It is accounted for to the extent that a liability or asset is expected to be payable or recoverable in the 

foreseeable future.

Financial Assets
The Group classifies its financial assets as either “available-for-sale” (“AFS”) financial assets or “loans and 

receivables” depending on their nature and purpose at the time of initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis at fair value, plus transaction costs.

Loans and Receivables
Rent arrears, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market are classified as “loans and receivables”. Loans and receivables are held at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method (discounting future cash receipts over the expected life of the instrument), less 

any provisions or impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate method, 

except for short–term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. 

Available for Sale (“AFS”) Financial Assets
Gilts held by the Group that can be traded in an active market are classified as being AFS and are stated 

at fair value. Fair value is determined upon the value at which the assets could be sold in an active market. 

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised through the STRSD and in the investments 

revaluation reserve with the exception of impairment losses and interest calculated using the effective interest 

rate method, which are recognised directly in the income and expenditure account. Where the investment 

is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the 

investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to the income and expenditure account for the period.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014
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2. Accounting Policies continued 

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment annually. Financial assets are impaired where there 

is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the 

financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For listed and unlisted investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 

security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

Derecognition of Financial Assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset  

to another Group member. If the Group does not retain substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

and continues to control the asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated 

liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

of a disposed financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a 

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as “other financial liabilities”.

Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,  

with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, 

cancelled or they expire.

Designated Reserves 
These are reserves specifically designated for future major repairs expenditure. Use of the designated reserves  

is shown by making a transfer from the reserves to the accumulated surplus/(deficit) of the relevant expenditure 

in the year. 

Investment Revaluation Reserve
The difference between the market value of investments and the historical cost carrying value is credited  

to the investment revaluation reserve.
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3. Particulars of Income and Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings

2014 2013

 
 

Turnover
£’000

 
Cost of

sales
£’000

Operating 
costs/

income
£’000

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)

£’000

 
 

Turnover
£’000

 
Cost of

sales
£’000

Operating 
costs/

income
£’000

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£’000

Social Housing Lettings 101,547 – (70,020) 31,527 94,466 – (63,224) 31,242

Other Social Housing 
 Activities Lettings

Non–social 341 – (118) 223 209 – (117) 92

Other Social Housing 
 Activities

Development 
 administration – – (1,073) (1,073) – – (769) (769)

Cesspool emptying 26 – (94) (68) 41 – (34) 7

Management services 438 – (213) 225 358 – (172) 186

Supporting people 159 – (82) 77 138 – (92) 46

Sale of housing 
 accommodation 1,111 – (1,688) (577) 1,075 – (1,455) (380)

Affinity Housing Services 
 (joint arrangement) 309 – (194) 115 308 – (222) 86

Intercompany 
 management services – – – – 13 – – 13

First tranche sales 11,181 (8,923) – 2,258 10,252 (7,616) – 2,636

Other non rent bad debts – – (74) (74) – – 401 401

Other Non–Social 
 Housing Activities

Care and support schemes 16,365 – (15,392) 973 15,471 – (14,587) 884

Movement in joint venture – – – – – – 221 221

Total 131,477 (8,923) (88,948) 33,606 122,331 (7,616) (80,050) 34,665
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3. Particulars of Income and Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings continued

General
needs

housing
£’000

 
Supported

housing
£’000

Temporary
social

housing
£’000

Key 
workers

£’000

 
Shared 

ownership
£’000

Others
£’000

2014
Total
£’000

2013
Total

£’000

Income Lettings

Rent receivable net of 
 identifiable service 
 charges 82,428 2,399 31 546 3,426 8,599 97,429 90,240

Service income 3,257 64 1 11 738 47 4,118 3,968

Charges for support 
 services – – – – – – – 258

Turnover from Social 
 Housing Lettings 85,685 2,463 32 557 4,164 8,646 101,547 94,466

Expenditure on Social 
 Housing Lettings

Management services (22,347) (552) – (157) (2,442) (1,715) (27,213) (23,504)

Services (4,459) (117) – (31) (441) (303) (5,351) (5,346)

Routine maintenance (13,109) (292) – (75) – (918) (14,394) (14,342)

Planned maintenance (3,371) (85) – (27) – (300) (3,783) (3,836)

Major repairs expenditure (6,230) (188) – (47) – (573) (7,038) (4,856)

Bad debts (416) – – – – – (416) (117)

Depreciation of housing 
 properties (9,736) (260) – (61) (950) (828) (11,835) (11,195)

Other costs 58 (2) (22) (1) (14) (9) 10 (28)

Operating Cost on 
 Social Housing 
 Lettings (59,610) (1,496) (22) (399) (3,847) (4,646) (70,020) (63,224)

Operating Surplus  
 on Social Housing 
 Lettings 26,075 967 10 158 317 4,000 31,527 31,242

Void (Losses)/Gains (768) (41) – (17) 4 (164) (986) (984)
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3. Particulars of Group Income and Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings continued

Group Surplus from Sale of Housing Properties
2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Sale proceeds 4,543 3,632

Less: Cost of sales (3,183)  (2,331)

Net Surplus from Sale of Housing Properties 1,360 1,301

Group Accommodation in Management

2014
Number 
of units

2013
Number
of units

Social Housing

General needs housing 14,943 14,539

Supported housing 386 392

Shared ownership 1,566 1,451

Market/intermediate rents 1,251 1,189

Managed for other rented accommodation 99 105

Managed for others 659 664

Leaseholders 1,540 1,521

Housing properties in management 20,444 19,861

Non housing properties in management 2,271 2,283

Total Properties in Management 22,715 22,144

Home loans 1,781 1,980

Total Properties Managed or Invested 24,496 24,124

4. Interest Receivable and Other Income

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Interest receivable from bank and building society deposits 152  659 3,425 –

HomeBuy redemptions 760 726 – –

Bond premium amortised 177 – – –

Loan notes in joint venture* 190 192 – –

Net interest in joint venture 206 206 – –

1,485 1,783 3,425 –

* This interest receivable relates to £1.5m loan notes in joint venture (note 15) reclassified from investments.
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5. Interest Payable and Other Finance Costs

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

On Housing Loans

Repayment wholly or partly in more than five years 24,529 23,964 3,362 –

On recyclable Social Housing Grant 16 13 – –

Loan arrangement fees and associated costs 150 101 69 –

Bond discount amortised 19 – – –

24,714 24,078 3,431 –

Other interest payable 8 17 – –

Total interest charges 24,722 24,095 3,431 –

Interest charged to the income and expenditure account 24,722 24,095 3,431 –

Expected return on pension scheme assets (2,808) (1,412) (247) (109)

Interest on pension scheme liabilities 3,051 1,756 245 122

Other Finance Costs Charged to the Income and 
 Expenditure Account 243 344 (2) 13
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6. Group Surplus on Ordinary Activities before Taxation

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Surplus on Ordinary Activities before Taxation is Stated after  
 Charging/(Crediting):

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 12,969 12,341

Operating lease rental:

 Temporary social housing 21 –

 Land and buildings 518 734

 Office equipment, computers and motor vehicles 196 358

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration (excluding VAT) is as follows:

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s accounts 7 7

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 87 82

Total Audit Fees 94 89

Other amounts receivable by the auditor and their associates (excluding VAT) in respect of: 

Audit related assurance services 5 12

Tax compliance services – 21

Tax advisory services 23 67

Accounting services 23 22

Total Non Audit Fees 51 122

Total Audit and Non Audit Fees 145 211

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014



Radian Group Limited Report and Financial Statements 2014   63

7. Taxation

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

United Kingdom corporation tax at 23% (2013: 24%) 79 52

Adjustment in respect of prior year (9)  (358)

Deferred taxation

Timing differences, origination and reversal (note 23) – –

Tax from joint venture – –

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year 70 (306)

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation 11,482 14,145

Taxation on surplus on ordinary activities at 23% (2013: 24%) 2,641 3,395

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,637 1,477

Capital allowances in deficit/(excess) of depreciation 285 (358)

Prior year adjustments (9) (352)

Movement in short term timing differences 388 –

Other timing differences – 107

Non-taxable charitable activities (4,872) (4,574)

70 (306)

The Finance Act 2013, which provides for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% 

effective from 1 April 2014 and to 20% effective from 1 April 2015, was substantively enacted on 2 July 

2013. These rate reductions have been reflected in the calculation of deferred tax at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of short term timing differences and in respect of 

pension deficits in taxable Group entities as there is insufficient evidence that the asset will be recovered.  

The amount of the asset not recognised is £4,437,000 (2013: £4,206,000). The asset would be recovered  

if there were sufficient and suitable taxable surpluses in the future.
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8. Directors’ Emoluments

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Total Remuneration Paid to the Executive Directors of Radian Group 
 (the Board of Management and the Executive Team) was:

Emoluments (including pension contributions and benefits in kind) 746 656

Total Remuneration Paid to the Non Executive Directors of Radian Group was:

Emoluments 11 15

Total Remuneration Paid to the Board of Management and the Executive Team  
 of Radian Group 757 671

Total Directors’ Pension Contributions 108 55

Total Emoluments (excluding Pension Contributions) of the  
 Highest Paid Director 166 161

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Final Salary Scheme with a 1/60th accrual rate benefit 

structure of the Radian Group Pension Scheme with the same conditions of membership as all other 

employees within that non–contributory benefit structure of the Scheme. Full details of scheme funding  

are disclosed in note 22. The Chief Executive has no pension arrangements to which the Group contributes, 

other than those relating to the Scheme.
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9. Staff Costs

Group Company
2014

Number
2013

Number
2014

Number
2013

Number

The Average Number of Employees and Directors  
 Expressed in Full Time Equivalents During the Year was:

Housing services and central services 370 371 5 5

Care staff 398 399 – –

Wardens, caretakers and cleaners 16 11 – –

Maintenance staff 271 263 – –

Development staff  37  39 – –

1,092 1,083 5 5

Group Company
2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Staff Costs (for the above Employees)

Wages and salaries 35,859 34,589 641 629

Social security costs 2,987 2,965 70 74

Pension costs 2,355 1,563 108 55

41,201 39,117 819 758

The Group has the following number of full time equivalent staff with remuneration (including compensation 

for loss of office and excluding pension contributions) of £60,000 or more, shown in bands of £10,000).

2014
Number

2013
Number

Salary Banding

£60,000 - £69,999 9 4

£70,000 - £79,999 6 5

£80,000 - £89,999 2 4

£90,000 - £99,999 3 –

£100,000 - £109,999 – 2

£110,000 - £119,999 2 –

£120,000 - £129,999 1 2

£130,000 - £139,999 1 1

£140,000 - £149,999 1 –

£150,000 - £159,999 – –

£160,000 - £169,999 – 1

£170,000 - £179,999 1 –

£180,000 - £189,999 1 –

27 19
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014

10. Group Tangible Fixed Assets

Housing
properties

held for
letting
£’000

Shared
ownership
properties

£’000

Other
properties

£’000

Total
completed

housing
properties

£’000

Housing
properties

in course of
construction

£’000

Cost

At 1 April 2013 890,554 82,818 151,423 1,124,795 25,212

Additions 535 – 18,626 19,161 35,514

Additions – works to existing properties 5,381 – 166 5,547 –

Transferred into management 40,780 10,163 5,654 56,597 (40,780)

Disposals and demolitions (4,405) (2,113) (707) (7,225) –

Net movement on current assets – (889) – (889) –

At 31 March 2014 932,845 89,979 175,162 1,197,986 19,946

Social Housing Grant

At 1 April 2013 319,192 28,087 57,315 404,594 7,863

Received in year 40 – 6,489 6,529 2,841

Transferred across tenures 63 (63) – – –

Transferred into management 9,046 2,302 1,541 12,889 (9,046)

Transferred to recycled capital grant fund (141) (797) (399) (1,337) 3,474

At 31 March 2014 328,200 29,529 64,946 422,675 5,132

Other Public Subsidy

At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 10,143 9 369 10,521 – 

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2013 81,455 1,804 4,676 87,935 –

Charge for the year 10,450 357 1,027 11,834 –

Intra Group transfers 4 – – 4 –

Disposals (3,914) (45) (87) (4,046) –

At 31 March 2014 87,995 2,116 5,616 95,727 –

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2014 506,507 58,325 104,231 669,063 14,814

At 31 March 2013 479,764 52,918 89,063 621,745 17,349

There were no revenue grants receivable at the balance sheet date.
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10. Group Tangible Fixed Assets continued

Shared
 ownership

properties in
course of

construction
£’000

Other
properties

in course of
construction

£’000

Housing
sub total

 £’000

Freehold
office

premises
£’000

Leasehold
office

premises
£’000

Office/
scheme

fixture and
fittings
£’000

Computer
equipment

£’000

Other
sub total

£’000
Total
£’000

6,406 3,799 1,160,212 4,975 8,967 4,877 6,215 25,034 1,185,246

7,457 2,534 64,666 – – 371 643 1,014 65,680

– – 5,547 – – – – – 5,547

(10,163) (5,654) – – – – – – –

– – (7,225) – – (163) (373) (536) (7,761)

– – (889) – – – – – (889)

3,700 679 1,222,311 4,975 8,967 5,085 6,485 25,512 1,247,823

2,710 1,264 416,431 – – – – – 416,431

1,141 524 11,035 – – – – – 11,035

– – – – – – – – –

(2,302) (1,541) – – – – – – –

484 173 2,794 – – – – – 2,794

2,033 420 430,260 – – – – – 430,260

– – 10,521 – – 2 – 2 10,523

– – 87,935 899 1,458 3,527 5,410 11,294 99,229

– – 11,834 119 76 436 504 1,135 12,969

– – 4 – – – – – 4

– – (4,046) – – (154) – (154) (4,200)

– – 95,727 1,018 1,534 3,809 5,914 12,275 108,002

1,667 259 685,803 3,957 7,433 1,274 571 13,235 699,038

3,696 2,535 645,325 4,076 7,509 1,348 805 13,738 659,063

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014



68   Radian Group Limited Report and Financial Statements 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014

10. Group Tangible Fixed Assets continued

Expenditure on works to existing properties:

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Amounts capitalised 5,547 6,808

Amount charged to income and expenditure 7,038 4,856

Public subsidy is represented by “free” land which has been made available by a number of local authorities 

working in partnership with the Group and grants or contributions made to projects which are not SHG in 

schemes involving such free land and SHG payable is calculated on the “full cost” of the scheme (including 

the value of the free land) and then reduced by the value of the free land.

11. Company Fixed Assets

Computer
equipment

£’000

Cost

At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 9

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 –

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2014 9

At 31 March 2013 9

Fixed asset investments
In 2011/12, the Company subscribed for the whole of the share capital of Radian Capital Plc, a subsidiary set up 

to raise funds through the bond markets to extend to other members of the Radian Group. The Company holds 

50,000 £1 shares of which £12,500 was paid.
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12. Long Term Investments
HomeBuy loans have been shown at cost less grant funding received.

Investment in Affinity (Reading) Holdings Ltd
The Group, through its subsidiary Windsor and District Housing Association Limited has a joint venture 

investment in 499 shares (2013: 499 shares) in Affinity (Reading) Holdings Ltd:

Equity holding: Ordinary

Country of registration: England

Proportion held: 50%

Principal activity:  Holds 100% of the share capital of Affinity (Reading) Limited which is  

the operator of a PFI contract to supply refurbishment, management and 

maintenance of part of Reading Borough Council’s housing stock.

Investments 
£’000

Cost

At 1 April 2013 1,783

Movement in year 156

At 31 March 2014 1,939

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Other fixed asset investments 25 –

This is the Swaythling Housing Society’s investment in shares in Parity Trust, a socially responsible community 

development finance institution.

13. Properties for Sale

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Shared Ownership Schemes

Outright sales – 185

Properties under construction 2,383 4,762

Completed properties 2,165 2,482

4,548 7,429
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014

14. Stocks

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
Restated
(note 28)

£’000

Stocks 207 140 – –

15. Debtors

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
Restated
(note 28)

£’000

Gross arrears of rent and service charges 3,210 3,938 – –

Bad debt provision (1,781) (1,638) – –

Net tenant arrears 1,429 2,300 – –

Social Housing Grant receivable 2,310 5,773 – –

Corporation tax 94 –  –  –

Non liquid assets 3,777 1,636 – –

Trade debtors 995  997 81 38

Other debtors and prepayments 13,399  7,203 9,213 494

Unamortised net premium on issue 126 – – –

Amounts due from subsidiary companies – – – 353

Amounts due within one year 22,130 17,909 9,294 885

Loan notes due from joint venture 1,615 1,529 – –

Loans due from subsidiary company* – – 112,971 107,486

Amounts due after one year 1,615 1,529 112,971 107,486

Total Debtors 23,745 19,438 122,265 108,371

Non–liquid assets are assets held as loan security.

*  Under the Group funding arrangement, loans made to subsidiary companies are repayable over  

30 years.
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16. Cash at Bank and In Hand and Short Term Investments

Group Company
2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Short term investments 38,129 32,686 – –

Cash at bank and in hand 33,803 37,870 3,083 4,018

71,932 70,556 3,083 4,018

There is a right of set–off between the bank overdraft and any cash held at bank.

Short term investments comprise deposits held on account and investments in the following gilts:

Nominal 
value (£)

Fair 
value (£)

Interest
rate

Expiry
date

UK Government gilt holding 599,966 731,779 4.75% 2038

UK Government gilt holding 296,200 443,788 8.00% 2021

UK Government gilt holding 723,000 1,013,295 8.00% 2021

17. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
Restated
(note 28)

£’000

Housing loans (note 18) 4,478 6,342 2,647 4,515

Amounts due to contractors 8 8 – –

Trade creditors 7,104 6,025 321 329

Rent and service charges received in advance 2,908 2,232 – –

SHG received in advance 53 53 – –

Amount due to subsidiary companies – – 14,654 6,805

Corporation tax – 115 – 4

Other taxation and social security payable 930 932 – –

Other creditors and accruals 18,213 20,001 144 79

Interest due and payable 3,475 3,508 – –

Right to Buy profit share agreement 2,705 2,706 – –

39,874 41,922 17,766 11,732
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014

18. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Bond debt 100,000 77,000 – –

Housing loans falling due after more than one year 521,995 516,598 110,361 102,971

Recycled Capital Grant Fund and Disposal Proceeds Fund  
 (note 19) 5,289 2,841 – –

Deferred income 256 241 – –

Unamortised fees and net premiums 5,570 707 (23) (35)

Total 633,110 597,387 110,338 102,936

Unamortised fees and net premiums (5,570) (707) 23 35

Deferred income (256) (241) – –

Loan and bond analysis

Recycled Capital Grant Fund and Disposal Proceeds Fund  
 (note 19) (5,289) (2,841) – –

Loan Principal Outstanding 621,995 593,598 110,361 102,971

Loans are secured by fixed mortgages over the housing properties and fixed charges over bank accounts. 

Interest rates are fixed within a range of 4.68% to 11.05% or vary with the market and are repayable in 

instalments which are due as follows:

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Loan and Bond Repayments

In one year or less 4,478 6,342 2,647 4,515

Between one and two years 3,896 2,729 1,161 897

Between two and five years 29,135 17,837 9,634 9,176

In five years or more 455,964 452,532 99,566 92,898

493,473 479,440 113,008 107,486

Loans repayable otherwise than by instalments:

Between two and five years – 10,500 – –

In five years or more 133,000 110,000 – –

626,473 599,940 113,008 107,486
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18. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year continued

Bonds
In 2011/12 the Company issued £100m of 6% 2042 bonds including £25m of reserve bonds, the proceeds of 

which were on-lent to Portal Housing Association Limited (“Portal”), a member of the Radian Group. During 

2012/13 the Company issued £2m of the reserve bonds to investors, again on–lending the proceeds to Portal. 

In September 2013 the remaining £23m reserve bond was sold to investors at a premium of £5m and the 

proceeds were again on–lent to Portal.

In May 2014, the Company acquired £23m of bonds at a premium of £4.9m. At the same time, the Company 

issued £200m of part paid bonds 2049 at an interest rate of 5.029% of which £100m were sold to investors. 

£1m was paid at issue, and a further instalment of £24m is due on the second anniversary of issue, and 

further instalments of £25m are receivable on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries. The investor has 

contracted to make these payments. On that day, the Company also issued £100m of 4.622% 2044 bonds, 

which amortise in five annual instalments on the 26th, 27th, 28th, 29th and 30th anniversaries. £30m were 

subscribed for by investors, whilst £70m were retained. Funds from all issues have been on–lent to Portal on 

like terms. 

19. Recycled Capital Grant Fund and Disposal Proceeds Fund

Recycled 
capital 

grant fund 
£’000

Disposals 
proceeds 

fund
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 April 2013 (2,791) (50) (2,841)

Net Inputs to Fund:

Grants recycled (6,614) – (6,614)

Interest accrued (15) (2) (17)

Recycling of Net Grant:

New build 4,131 52 4,183

At 31 March 2014 (5,289) – (5,289)

Section 24 of the Housing Act 1996 requires Registered Providers to credit to a Disposal Proceeds Fund the net 

proceeds of Right to Acquire and Voluntary Purchase Grant Sales. The purpose of the Disposal Proceeds Fund 

is to provide replacement properties for rent at no greater cost than properties provided through the Approved 

Development Programme. If the net proceeds remain unspent after the third year, the funds become repayable 

to the HCA.

The Recycled Capital Grant Fund relates to SHG previously received on social housing properties that have 

been sold, demolished or for which there has been a change of use which does not meet the original 

conditions of the Grant. The HCA permits grants to be re-invested within a three year period into schemes 

within the Approved Development Programme. The HCA requires funds which have not been re–invested 

within three years to be repaid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
Year ended 31 March 2014

20. Group Reserves

Revenue 
reserve 
£’000

Restricted 
reserve
£’000

Designated 
reserve 
£’000

Revaluation 
reserve
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 April 2013 100,441 591 6,864 534 108,430

Surplus for year 11,412 – – – 11,412

Realisation of revaluation reserve surplus – – – (242) (242)

Actuarial loss relating to pension scheme (1,643) – – – (1,643)

Transfers between reserves 14 (14) – – –

At 31 March 2014 110,224 577 6,864 292 117,957

21. Company Reserves

£’000

Revenue Reserve

At 1 April 2013 as previously reported (2,227)

Prior year adjustment (note 28) (1,717)

At 1 April 2013 (restated) (3,944)

Result for year 11

Actuarial loss on pension scheme (net of deferred tax) (193)

At 31 March 2014 (4,126)

The Members are not entitled to any distribution of surpluses or assets of the Company.

22. Pensions
The total pension costs for Radian Group Limited for the year were £2.4m (2013: £1.6m). 

The Group, through its subsidiaries, participates in a number of Pension Schemes:

• Radian Group Pension Scheme (“RGPS”)

• Flexible Retirement Plan (“FRP”)

• Growth Plan (“GP”);

• Hampshire Pension Fund (“HPF”);

• The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (“RCB”); and

• NHS Pension Scheme (“NHS”).
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22. Pensions continued

Radian Group Pension Scheme
On 1 October 2012 all employers within the Radian Group established RGPS, a separate pension scheme 

administered by the Pensions Trust. At the same time employers in the Radian Group withdrew from the 

Social Housing Pension Scheme (“SHPS”) and discharged those liabilities which were not transferred to 

RGPS. RGPS has the following benefit structures for its active members:

•  1/60th Final Salary; and 

•  1/60th CARE (“Career Average Revalued Earnings”).

RGPS is closed to new members for all employers within the Radian Group though the Group has retained 

the ability to admit new members at its discretion.

Between the periods of 1 October 2012 until 30 September 2013 the contribution rate of Radian Group 

to RGPS was £75,328 per month plus 6.9% of members’ earnings. In September 2013, employers made 

a total accelerated deficit payment into the Scheme of £4m to improve the funding level. Employers 

continued to make monthly contributions of 6.9% of members’ earnings until 31 March 2014. As at  

31 March 2014 there were 353 active members, 376 deferred members and 112 pensioner members  

in RGPS. 

RGPS is currently undergoing an actuarial valuation and future contribution rates will not be known until 

this has been completed. We anticipate that employer contributions will be increased from 1 April 2015 

when the rate of additional contributions will also change.

Main financial assumptions adopted for FRS 17 purposes:

2014
%

2013
%

Increases per annum

RPI 3.3 3.3

CPI 2.4 2.4

Salaries 4.3 4.3

Pension (or 5% if less) 2.4 2.4

Discount rate 4.4 4.4

Flexible Retirement Plan
Under FRS 17, the accounting charge for the year for FRP represented the employer contribution. The Group’s 

contributions to the Plan charged to the income and expenditure account for the year totalled £405,247 

(2013: £1,934). There were outstanding contributions as at 31 March 2014 of £297,134 (2013: £167).  

From 1 October 2013 the Group automatically enrolled all eligible employees not already members of a 

pension scheme into FRP, increasing the operating cost of the Plan. Employees were given the opportunity  

to opt out.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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22. Pensions continued

Growth Plan
The GP is a funded multi–employer pension plan that is not contracted out of the state scheme. As the 

scheme assets are co–mingled for investment purposes and benefits are paid out of the Plan’s total assets,  

it is not possible to identify the Group’s share of the underlying assets and liabilities on a reasonable and 

consistent basis, the accounting charge represents the employer contribution payable for the period.

As at the balance sheet date there were three active members of the GP. 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out by an independent professionally qualified actuary as at  

30 September 2011 using the projected unit method. Additional employer contributions are required over  

10 years to cover the past service deficit. The additional contributions required from the Group from 1 April 

2013 were £3,786.50 per annum. These additional contributions will increase from 1 April each year by 3% 

per annum compound, with the first increase effective on 1 April 2014.

The Group has been notified by the Pensions trust of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from the 

Plan based on the financial position of the Plan as at 30 September 2013. As of this date the estimated 

employer debt was £60,935 (2013: £74,782).

Local Government Defined Benefit Schemes
The Group participates in HPF and RCB, two multi–employer defined benefit pension schemes where the 

deficit or surplus can be separately identified. 

Hampshire County Council Pension Fund
The funded nature of HPF requires the Group and its employees to pay contributions into the Fund, 

calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets. 

The latest actuarial valuation of the Fund is dated 31 March 2013 and was performed by an independent 

qualified actuary on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The agreed employer’s 

contribution rate is 15.6% of gross pay for 2014/15 (2013/14: 15.6%). To contribute to the Fund shortfall, 

the Group must pay a capital contribution amount for past service contributions over a recovery period 

of 25 years. These additional contributions for 2013/14 were £32,600 (2012/13: £32,600). There will be 

a 20% uplift in these contributions each year until 2018 and then they will increase at 3.9% per year 

thereafter in line with actuarial salary increase assumptions.

Main financial assumptions adopted for FRS 17 purposes:

2014
%

2013
%

Increases per annum

RPI 3.4 3.7

CPI 2.7 2.8

Salaries 3.9 4.7

Pension (or 5% if less) 2.7 2.8

Deferred pension 2.7 2.8

Discount rate 4.0 4.4

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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22. Pensions continued

Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund
Windsor and District Housing Association Limited (“Windsor”) and Radian Support Limited (“Support”) are 

both members of the RCB Fund. As they share a similar risk profile and the Group is the principal employer  

of both subsidiaries, the balances have been amalgamated.

The RCB Fund is a multi–employer defined benefit scheme. The latest actuarial valuation of the Fund is dated 

31 March 2013 and was performed by an independent qualified actuary on an actuarial basis. Windsor’s level 

of contributions for 2013/14 is 17.6% of pensionable pay (2012/13: 17.6%). It will increase to 19.6% in 

2014/15, 21.7% in 2015/16 and 23.7% in 2016/17. Support’s level of contributions for 2013/14 is 17.6% of 

pensionable pay (2012/13: 17.6%). It will increase to 18.1% in 2014/15, 18.6% in 2015/16 and 19.2%  

in 2016/17.

Main financial assumptions adopted for FRS 17 purposes:

2014
%

2013
%

Increases per annum

RPI 3.6 3.4

CPI 3.0 2.6

Salaries 4.6 4.6

Pension (or 5% if less) 3.0 2.6

Discount rate 4.0 4.6

NHS Pension Scheme
A number of staff employed by Support during the year contributed to the NHS scheme. Members 

contribute between 5% and 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on their total earnings and Support’s 

contributions represent 14% of pensionable pay.

The NHS scheme’s statutory benefits are fully guaranteed by the Government. Member and employer 

contributions are paid to the Exchequer to pay scheme benefits. The Exchequer pays for the cost of increasing 

benefits due to inflation.

The cost of the scheme is equal to the employer contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting 

period. The total employer contribution payable in 2013/14 was £81,336 (2012/13: £97,020). There were 

outstanding contributions at 31 March 2014 of £6,126 (2013: £7,225).
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22. Pensions continued
The Assets in the Group’s schemes and the expected rate of return at 31 March 2014 were:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council 
Pension Scheme

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund

Long term
 rate of
 return

%
Value
£’000

Long term
 rate of
 return

%
Value
£’000

Long term
 rate of
 return

%
Value
£’000

Total
 value
£’000

Equities 7.0 27,360 7.6 4,469 6.4 2,299 34,128

Government bonds 3.4 10,336 3.4 1,735 3.0 54 12,125

Corporate bonds – – 4.0 118 4.1 876 994

Property 6.0 1,846 6.9 551 4.5 657 3,054

Cash – – 0.9 279 0.9 110 389

Alternative assets 0.5 388 7.6 198 4.8 1,467 2,053

Total Market Values of Assets 39,930 7,350 5,463 52,743

The Assets in the Group’s schemes and the expected rate of return at 31 March 2013 were:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council 
Pension Scheme

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund

Long term
 rate of
 return

%
Value
£’000

Long term
 rate of
 return

%
Value
£’000

Long term
 rate of
 return

%
Value
£’000

Total
 value
£’000

Equities 7.0 32,960 7.8 3,865 6.4 1,975 38,800

Government bonds 3.4 – 2.8 1,671 3.0 49 1,720

Corporate bonds – – 3.8 87 4.1 1,011 1,098

Property 6.0 – 7.3 524 4.5 481 1,005

Cash – – 0.9 154 – – 154

Other 0.5 – 7.8 409 4.8 1,301 1,710

Total Market Values of Assets 32,960 6,710 4,817 44,487



Radian Group Limited Report and Financial Statements 2014   79

22. Pensions continued
The Group’s share of the net assets and liabilities of the Group’s schemes is set out below:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council
Pension Fund

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund Total

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Fair value in scheme assets 39,930 32,960 7,350 6,710 5,463 4,817 52,743 44,487

Present value of scheme liabilities (52,933) (48,249) (12,300) (10,980) (10,536) (9,540) (75,769) (68,769)

Group share of deficit in the  
 scheme (13,003) (15,289) (4,950) (4,270) (5,073) (4,723) (23,026) (24,282)

Movements in the Fair Value  
 of Scheme Assets:

Opening fair value of scheme 
 assets 32,960 – 6,710 5,900 4,817 4,555 44,487 10,455

Assets allocated to scheme – 29,825 – – – – – 29,825

Expected return on scheme assets 2,190 800 420 370 196 242 2,806 1,412

Actuarial gains and (losses) (648) 1,145 330 510 724 228 406 1,883

Contributions from employers 5,209 1,002 130 140 31 45 5,370 1,187

Contributions from scheme  
 members 1,038 356 40 50 11 16 1,089 422

Benefits paid net of transfers in  
 and including unfunded (819) (168) (280) (260) (316) (269) (1,415) (697)

Closing Fair Value of Scheme 
 Assets 39,930 32,960 7,350 6,710 5,463 4,817 52,743 44,487

Movements in the Present  
 Value of Defined Obligations:

Opening defined benefit  
 obligation 48,249 – 10,980 9,650 9,540 8,716 68,769 18,366

Liabilities transferred to scheme – 45,031 – – – – – 45,031

Service cost 1,839 874 160 150 50 67 2,049 1,091

Expenses 177 – – – – – 177 –

Interest cost 2,170 900 480 460 401 396 3,051 1,756

Actuarial losses 279 1,256 920 930 850 614 2,049 2,800

Benefits paid net of transfers in (819) (168) (280) (260) (316) (269) (1,415) (697)

Contributions by scheme  
 participants 1,038 356 40 50 11 16 1,089 422

Closing Defined Benefit  
 Obligation 52,933 48,249 12,300 10,980 10,536 9,540 75,769 68,769
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22. Pensions continued
Income and Expenditure account:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council
Pension Fund

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund Total

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Analysis of Amounts Chargeable  
 to Operating Surplus: 

Current service costs 1,839 874 160 150 50 67 2,049 1,091

Amounts Charged/(Credited) to  
 Other Finance Costs:

Expected return on employer assets (2,190) (800) (420) (370) (196) (242) (2,806) (1,412)

Interest on pension scheme  
 liabilities 2,170 900 480 460 401 396 3,051 1,756

Net finance charge (20) 100 60 90 205 154 245 344

Statement of Recognised Surpluses and Deficits
Analysis of amount recognised in Statement of Recognised Surpluses and Deficits (“STRSD”):

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council
Pension Fund

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund Total

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Actual return less expected return  
 on pension scheme assets (648) 1,145 330 510 (66) 228 (384) 1,883

Changes in financial assumptions 
 underlying the present value of 
 the scheme liabilities 382 – (160) (950) (942) (614) (720) (1,564)

Experience (losses)/gains arising 
 on the scheme liabilities (661) (1,256) (760) 20 92 – (1,329) (1,236)

Allocated to the Radian Group  
 Pension Scheme during the year:

 Assets – 29,825 – – – – – 29,825

 Liabilities – (45,031) – – – – – (45,031)

Other actuarial gains – – – – 790 – 790 –

Actuarial loss in pension  
 scheme (927) (15,317) (590) (420) (126) (386) (1,643) (6,123)
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22. Pensions continued
Movement in deficit during the year:

Radian Group 
Pension Scheme

Hampshire Council
Pension Fund

Royal County  
of Berkshire

Pension Fund Total

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Deficit at beginning of the year (15,289) – (4,270) (3,750) (4,723) (4,161) (24,282) (7,911)

Transferred to the scheme during  
 the year:

 Assets – 29,825 – – – – – 29,825

 Liabilities – (45,031) – – – – – (45,031)

Current service cost (1,839) (874) (160) (150) (50) (67) (2,049) (1,091)

Employer contributions 5,209 1,002 130 140 31 45 5,370 1,187

Net finance charge 20 (100) (60) (90) (205) (154) (245) (344)

Actuarial losses (927) (111) (590) (420) (126) (386) (1,643) (917)

Expenses (177) – – – – – (177) –

Deficit at end of year (13,003) (15,289) (4,950) (4,270) (5,073) (4,723) (23,026) (24,282)

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of the RGPS and RCB deficits in the taxable Group 

entities as there is insufficient evidence that the asset will be recovered. The amount of asset that has not been 

recognised in respect of the RGPS deficit is £1,954,000 (2013: £2,230,000) and the RCB deficit of £852,000 

(2013: £926,000). The asset would be recovered if there were sufficient and suitable surpluses in the future.

The two–year history of experience adjustments (Radian Group Pension Scheme):

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Difference between the expected and actual return on assets (648) 1,145

Value of assets 39,930 32,960

Percentage of assets (1.6%) 3.5%

Expected gains/(losses) on liabilities 279 (1,256)

Present value of liabilities (52,933) (48,249)

Percentage of the present value of liabilities (0.5%) 2.6%

Actuarial losses recognised in the STRSD (927) (15,317)

Present value of liabilities (52,933) (48,249)

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 1.8% 31.7%

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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22. Pensions continued
The five–year history of experience adjustments (Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund):

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2012
£’000

2011
£’000

2010
£’000

Difference between the expected and actual  
 return on assets (648) 228 (290) 30 (1,830)

Value of assets 5,463 4,817 4,555 4,736 3,450

Percentage of assets 11.9% 4.7% (6.4%) 0.6% (53.0%)

Expected gains on liabilities – – – 88 –

Present value of liabilities (10,536) (9,540) (8,716) (7,434) (5,611)

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% (1.2%) 0.0%

Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in the STRSD (126) (386) (1,324) 1,045 (929)

Present value of liabilities (10,536) (9,540) (8,716) (7,434) (5,611)

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 1.2% 4.0% 15.2% (14.1%) 16.6%

The five–year history of experience adjustments (Hampshire County Council Pension Scheme):

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

2012
£’000

2011
£’000

2010
£’000

Difference between the expected and actual  
 return on assets 330 510 (130) (1,030) 1,420

Value of assets 7,350 6,710 5,900 5,650 6,900

Percentage of assets 4.5% 7.6% (2.2%) (18.2%) 20.6%

Expected losses on liabilities (760) 20 (50) 840 60

Present value of liabilities (12,300) (10,980) (9,650) (8,540) (11,280)

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 6.2% (0.2%) 0.5% (9.8%) (0.5%)

Actuarial losses recognised in the STRSD (590) – – – –

Present value of liabilities (12,300) (10,980) (9,650) (8,540) (11,280)

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 4.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

23. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of timing differences relating to depreciation in excess 

of capital allowances, and other timing differences including the RGPS deficit and RCB Pension Fund deficits in 

the taxable Group entities, as there is insufficient evidence that the asset will be recovered. The amount of the 

asset not recognised is £4,437,000 (2013: £4,206,000).
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24. Ultimate Parent Company and Controlling Party
Radian Group Limited is the ultimate parent company. Radian Group Limited is limited by guarantee  

and therefore has no shareholders. Below is a list of all entities which make up the Group.

Subsidiary Status Activity Holding

The Swaythling Housing  
 Association Limited

Industrial & Provident Society 
registered in England

Registered Provider 100%

Windsor and District Housing  
 Association Limited

Industrial & Provident Society 
registered in England

Registered Provider 100%

Portal Housing Association  
 Limited

Charitable Industrial & Provident 
Society registered in England

Registered Provider 100%

Drum Housing Association  
 Limited

Charitable Industrial & Provident 
Society registered in England

Registered Provider 100%

Radian Support Limited Charitable Industrial & Provident 
Society registered in England

Care and support  
services

100%

Radian Capital Plc Public limited company  
registered in England

Funding vehicle 100%

Swaythling Assured Homes Plc Public limited company  
registered in England

Rental of residential  
property (dormant)

100%

1999 Housing Society Limited Dissolved Exempt charity  
(dissolved in year) 

100%

Cerus Homes Limited Dormant limited company Rental of property  
(dormant) 

100%

Cotinus Housing Limited Non trading Industrial & Provident 
Society registered in England

Rental of property 
(non trading)

100%

Oriel Housing Limited Dormant Industrial & Provident 
Society registered in England

Registered Provider 
(non trading)

100%

Joint Venture Status Activity Holding

Affinity Reading (Holdings)  
 Limited

Limited company registered in 
England

Holding company 50%

Affinity Reading Limited Limited company registered in 
England

Operator of PFI contract 
to refurbish, manage and 
maintain housing stock

50%

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
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25. Group Financial Commitments
The total amount contracted for at 31 March 2014 related to schemes for which Board approval has been 

received and finance arranged.

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Capital expenditure commitments were as follows:

Capital new build expenditure contracted but not provided in the accounts 35,425 49,060

Authorised but not contracted 55,108 52,256

Total Capital Commitments 90,533 101,316

The above represents major works, capital new build or other capital commitment authorised by the Board but 

not contracted and contracted but not authorised.

Operating leases
The payments which the Group is committed to make in the next year under operating leases are as follows:

Buildings Other
2014

£’000
2013
£’000

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Leases which expire:

 Within one year 469 352 59 37

 Within two to five years 52 293 85  151

 More than five years 6 105 – –

527 750 144  188

26. Related Party Transactions
During the year there were three Board members who are residents of properties either owned by Drum 

Housing Association Limited or by The Swaythling Housing Society Limited. Transactions with these Board 

members are at arm’s length and are not material. 

The Radian Group Pension Scheme, the RCB Pension Scheme, the HCC Pension Scheme and The Pensions 

Trust Growth Plan are considered to be related parties and full disclosure of these schemes is given in note 22.
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26. Related Party Transactions continued

Transactions with Subsidiary Undertakings and Joint Venture
Radian Group Limited is the ultimate parent undertaking and has taken advantage of the exemption 

contained in FRS 8 not to disclose transactions or balances with entities which form part of the Group.

This is the case except for intra group transactions with the following subsidiary undertakings and transactions 

with the following joint venture: Radian Support Limited, Radian Capital Plc and Affinity (Reading) Holdings 

Limited. These entities are not regulated by the Regulation Committee of the HCA and the Accounting 

Direction for Social Housing requires Registered Providers to disclose transactions with non regulated Group 

members. Cotinus Housing Limited, a non trading subsidiary undertaking and dormant subsidiaries Swaythling 

Assured Homes Plc and 1999 Housing Society Limited, were also non-regulated subsidiaries but there were 

no material transactions with regulated Group members during the year. 1999 Housing Society Limited was 

dissolved during the year. 

Transactions with the subsidiary undertakings are eliminated in the Group financial statements. Transactions 

with the joint venture are not eliminated in the Group financial statements.

These transactions, with non regulated Group members are shown from the perspective of the relevant 

Registered Provider:

Radian Support Limited
2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Income

Management charge 459 309

Facilities charge 100 100

Lettings 223 244

Balance Sheet

Amounts payable to “Radian Group Limited” (within one year) 84 157

Amounts payable to “Windsor and District Housing Association Limited” – 125

The Radian Support Limited (“Radian Support”) management charge includes an allocation of budgeted 

Central Services staff costs based on those full time equivalents whose work directly relates to Radian Support. 

The charge also includes directly attributable budgeted software and shared IT infrastructure costs. The 

management charge is recharged to Radian Support from Radian Group Limited and The Swaythling Housing 

Society Limited.

The facilities charge is charged to Radian Support by Windsor and District Housing Association Limited 

(“Windsor”) and is a proportional allocation of budgeted facilities costs based on usage of the Windsor offices 

for the benefit of Radian Support.

Radian Support leases homes from Windsor on behalf of the people it supports. These tenancies are on 

normal commercial terms and are managed in line with others in the Group. 
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26. Related Party Transactions continued

Radian Capital Limited
2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Expenditure

Interest on loans and amortisation of premiums and fees (5,352) (4,578)

Balance Sheet

Amounts payable to “Radian Group Limited” (within one year) – 8

Amounts payable to “Portal Housing Association Limited” (within one year) – 420

Amounts due from “Portal Housing Association Limited” (greater than one year) (105,113) (77,048)

Amounts due from “Radian Group Limited” (greater than one year) (37) (37)

Radian Capital Plc (“Radian Capital”) issued £23m of bonds to investors and on-lent the proceeds and 

unamortised net premiums to Portal Housing Association Limited (“Portal”). The loan agreement with Radian 

Capital mirrors the terms of the bond with a fixed interest rate of 6.0%. This is the interest expenditure  

shown above.

Post year end transactions between Radian Capital and Portal are disclosed within note 29.

There is no interest payable on amounts payable to and due from Radian Group Limited. The amount owing 

to Radian Group Limited results from normal intercompany trading transactions. The amount due from Radian 

Group Limited relates to called up share capital not paid.

Affinity (Reading) Holdings Limited
2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Income

Loan note interest payable to Windsor and District Housing Association Limited 190 192

Balance Sheet

Redeemable loan notes payable to Windsor and District Housing Association Limited 1,502 1,529

In addition to the loan notes balance (note 15) and loan note interest (note 4) payable to Windsor and 

included in the Group financial statements as a debtor and income, Windsor has a 50% investment in Affinity 

(Reading) Holdings Limited (“Affinity”) which in turn holds 100% of the share capital of Affinity (Reading) 

Limited. This joint venture is included in the Group financial statements by proportionately consolidating  

the Group’s share of assets, liabilities, profits and losses, using the gross equity method of accounting (FRS 9). 

The Group share of balances and profits are disclosed on the face of the income and expenditure account and 

balance sheet and in the related notes. Net interest receivable is disclosed in note 4 and the Group share of 

joint venture taxation is disclosed in note 7. Loan note interest is payable to Windsor at 12.5% according to 

the terms of the agreement with Affinity.
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27. Contingent Liability
Where an employer withdraws from a multi-employer defined benefit scheme which is in deficit, the  

employer is required by law to pay its share of the deficit, calculated on a statutory basis. Radian Group has 

been notified by The Pensions Trust of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from the Growth Plan 

based on the financial position of the Plan as at 30 September 2013. As of this date the estimated employer 

debt including Series 3 liabilities for the Group was £60,935 (2013: £74,782). This reflects The Pensions Trust’s 

understanding of how the change in the definition of the money purchase contained in the Pensions Act 2011 

will be implemented. The Board does not see this debt crystallising in the foreseeable future.

28. Prior Year Adjustment
The prior year adjustment reflects the change in allocation of balances in relation to the intercompany 

maintenance costs and recharges of the Direct Labour Organisation. Previously these were disclosed in the 

statutory accounts of Radian Group Limited. As The Swaythling Housing Society Limited is the managing 

agent for the Group’s properties and the maintenance costs and recharges are recognised within its own 

financial statements it is appropriate that the associated balances are recognised on its balance sheet.

Prior year 
adjustment 

£’000

Revenue 
deficit
£’000

Analysis of prior year adjustment

At 1 April 2013 as previously reported – (2,227)

Reallocation of intercompany recharges relating to Direct Labour Organisation (1,717) (1,717)

At 1 April 2013 (as restated) (1,717) (3,944)

Balance Sheet

2013
as previously

stated 
£’000

Prior year 
adjustment 

£’000

2013 
Restated

£’000

Stocks 140 (140) –

Debtors

Trade debtors 38

Other debtors and prepayments 494

Amounts due to subsidiary companies 353

4,371 (3,486) 885

Creditors within one year

Housing loans 4,515

Trade creditors 329

Amounts due to subsidiary companies 6,805

Corporation tax 4

Other creditors and accruals 79

13,641 (1,909) 11,732
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28. Prior Year Adjustment continued

2013
as previously

stated 
£’000

Prior year 
adjustment 

£’000

2013 
Restated

£’000

Revenue Reserve

Reallocation of intercompany recharges relating to Direct Labour  
 Organisation (1,717)

Total Prior Year Adjustments (1,717)

29. Post Balance Sheet Event
As noted in the Strategic Report, the Group has secured additional funding since year end. In May 2014,  

the Group acquired £23m of its bonds at a premium of £4.9m. The Group also issued £200m of part paid 

bonds 2049 at an interest rate of 5.029%, of which £100m were sold to investors and £100m retained.  

£1m was paid at issue, and a further instalment of £24m is due on the second anniversary of issue, and 

further instalments of £25m are receivable on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries. The investor has 

contracted to make these payments. On the same day the Group issued £100m of 4.622% 2044 bonds, 

which amortise in five annual instalments on the 26th, 27th, 28th, 29th and 30th anniversaries. £30m were 

subscribed for by investors, whilst a further £70m were retained. The Group has sufficient funds for its current 

needs but has the retained bonds available for sale to enable further investment.

Carol Bode was appointed as a non executive member of the Radian Group Board on 1 July 2014. Margaret 

Scott will leave the Board at the Annual General Meeting on 25 September, having served as a board member 

of Group companies for nine years. It is the Group Board’s intention to formally appoint Carol as Chair of the 

Board of Radian Group Limited at that time.






